
Page 1 of 3 

Sierra County 
Amendment to the Sierra County Personnel Policy 

Ordinance, 21- 

Ordinance No: 23-004 

Passed: ____________ 

Effective Date: 30 days 



SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ORDINANCE № 23-004 

AMENDING THE SIERRA COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY ORDINANCE, ORDINANCE NO.
16-009

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met upon notice of a 
regular meeting, duly published, at the Sierra County Administrative Offices, 855 Van Patten, 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901, on October 17, 2023; and,  

WHEREAS, on Oct 17th, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County adopted 
Ordinance 23-004, the Sierra County Personnel Policy Ordinance, to establish consistent, basic 
policies and practices, and professionalism expectations concerning relations between the 
County and its Employees; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 9.3 of the Personnel Policy Ordinance provides, in pertinent part, 
that “FLSA non-exempt, law enforcement or detention employee shall be paid overtime 
according to FLSA regulations in excess of eighty-six (86) hours per pay period permitted by 29 
U.S.C. Section 207(k)[;]” and, 

WHEREAS, in recognition of the invaluable contributions of our law enforcement and 
detention personnel, the Board of County Commissioners seeks to fully and fairly compensate its 
law enforcement and detention personnel, and to pay overtime in excess of eighty (80) hours per 
paid period. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are incorporated by reference as
a material part of the Ordinance Amendment as if the same were set out completely in the 
Ordinance Amendment. 

2. Amendment.  Ordinance 16-009 shall be amended as set forth in this instrument,
and, except as expressly amended by this instrument, shall remain in full force and effect as 
written. 

3. Amendment to Section 9.3 of Ordinance 16-009 Section 9.3 of this Ordinance is
deleted in its entirety and the following Section 9.3 is substituted in its place: 

9.3 Overtime Pay: Only FLSA non-exempt employees shall be compensated for all 
time actually worked, whether or not the time is authorized. Failure to obtain authorization for 

Page 2 of 3 



Page 3 of 3 

overtime shall result in disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. The rate shall be one 
and one-half (1½) times regular pay for each hour of overtime. Only actual time worked will be 
used to calculate overtime; holiday, annual, sick and other leave hours shall not be considered 
actual working hours.  

A. Regular, Law Enforcement and Detention employees: such payment shall be made
only in cases when an FLSA non-exempt employee works over forty (40) “actual
hours” in a normal workweek.

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND ORDAINED on this 17th day of October, 2023. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 

______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman  

______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 



SIERRA COUNTY 

REPEALING SIERRA COUNTY 
SPINLAUNCH LEDA ORDINANCE 

NO 21-001 

PASSED: __________, 2023 

EFFECTIVE: ___________, 2023



Page 2 of 3 

SIERRA COUNTY 
ORDINANCE 23-003 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SIERRA COUNTY SPINLAUNCH LEDA, 
ORDINANCE NO. 20-001 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-18-1 (1972) provides that municipalities, and also 
counties pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995), have the power to “protect 
generally the property of its municipality and its inhabitants” and to “preserve peace and 
order”; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 4-37-1 et seq. NMSA 1978 provides that counties may adopt 
ordinances, not inconsistent with statutory or constitutional limitations placed on counties, 
to discharge those powers necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the 
health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of 
the county and its inhabitants; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 4-57-1 to -3 (1967), the Board of County 
Commissioners previously authorized the County to act as fiscal agent for the Local 
Economic Development Act (LEDA) project with Spinlaunch; and, 

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2021, SpinLaunch, was awarded up to $4,000,000 in LEDA 
funds to construct and develop a suborbital launch system facility at Spaceport America in 
Sierra County, New Mexico.   

WHEREAS, part of this project included the creation of fifty-nine (59) new, full-time 
permanent jobs by December 31, 2030; and 

WHEREAS, SpinLaunch signed and agreed to the terms of the Project Participation 
Agreement (PPA) with Sierra County to perform and, upon completion of performance 
milestones, receive State of New Mexico LEDA  funding; and, 

WHEREAS, SpinLaunch’s LEDA project required submission of job reports in order to track 
the company’s hiring throughout the term of the project; and, 

WHEREAS, as of today, SpinLaunch has not submitted job reports for Q3-2022, Q4-2022, 
Q1-2023 or Q2-2023 PPA, and is currently non-compliant with the terms of the PPA.   

WHEREAS, no funds from this award have been distributed to SpinLaunch. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
the County of Sierra that (1) the County Administration is to terminate the Project 
Participation Agreement (PPA) attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made part of this 
Ordinance (2) that the County reimburse the NMEDD its original funding toward the 
SpinLaunch project in the amount of $4,000,000.00, within 30 days of receipt of funds; 



Page 3 of 3 

and (3) that the County staff is authorized to do all deeds as necessary in the 
accomplishment thereof. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND ORDAINED on this 17th Day of, October

2023. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 

______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman  

______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 



Sierra County Commission 
Albert J Lyons Building 

2953 S Broadway St, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 
Tuesday October 17th, 2023 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE ABLE TO WATCH AND LISTEN TO THE MEETING VIA: 
(facebook.com/SCEmergencyServices) (Local radio KCHS 101.9) 

AMENDED 

Call to Order:    9:30 AM Public Meeting – Ordinance 23-004 Amendment to Personnel Policy 
Ordinance 16-009 

9:45 AM Public Meeting- Ordinance 23-003 to Repeal SpinLaunch LEDA, 
Ordinance 20-001 

10:00 AM Regular Meeting 

Roll Call:   Travis Day-Chairman   Shelly K. Trujillo-Clerk 
James E. Paxon-Vice-Chair  Nance, Pato & Stout, LLC-Attorney 
Hank Hopkins -Commissioner  Amber Vaughn-County Manager 

Pledge of Allegiance 

New Mexico State Flag Pledge-I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico and the Zia symbol of perfect 
friendship among united cultures. 

Introduction of Guests 

I. Approval of Agenda
II. Approval of Minutes

A. Regular Meeting – September 13th, 2023
B. Special Meeting- September 15th, 2023

III. Public Comment: Limited to 3 Minutes
IV. Consent Agenda:

A. Resolution No. 110-191 Accounts Payables- July-August
B. Resolution No. 110-192 Budget Adjustments
C. Resolution No. 110-193 Indigent Claims
D. Indigent Burial B2023-07
E. Claim of Exemption #23-003

V. Presentations/Reports:
A. Years of Service Awards
B. Department Reports
C. Fair Ground Update – Wilson Engineering
D. Non-profit Museums of Sierra County
E. Public proposal for Ordinance Regarding the Loss of Livestock and Pets Due to the Attack of

Dogs
VI. Board of Finance:

A. September Reconciliation
VII. Old Business:



VIII. New Business:
A. Direction to Publish Ordinance 23-005 Codifying the New Mexico Enabling Act
B. Direction to Publish Ordinance 23-006 Indigent Healthcare Ordinance
C. Road Vacation Request VR23-002 for portion of Lula Street in Kingston
D. Approval for Year Two of Recruitment/Retention Funding for Sheriff’s Department
E. Approval for Law Enforcement Recruiting/Hiring fund $262,500 over three years to add a

law enforcement position
IX. Contracts-Agreements-Procurement:

A. Sierra County 23-ZH9304 Grant Agreement
B. Road-State Price Agreement- ABC Concrete-Official Approval
C. Facility- State Price Agreement- Don Chalmers Ford-LACTF
D. Wilson Fee Proposal-Fairgrounds-Task Order #2-Design and Construct
E. WTI/TREMCO- Fairgrounds- Restoration and Interior - Note: Quote for HVAC-Following

Installation- CES
F. Sheriff- State Price Agreement- Don Chalmers Ford-Pending Final Agreements
G. Sheriff- State Price Agreement- WAC Upfitters, LLC—Vehicle Accessories -Pending Final

Agreements

X. Resolutions-Ordinances-Proclamations:
A. Resolution No. 110-194 Supporting the New Mexico Trappers Association’s Litigation

Against the State’s Public Lands Trapping Ban
B. Resolution No. 110-195 Resolution Supporting the New Mexico Counties 2024 Legislative

Priorities
C. Resolution 110-196 A Resolution approving the amended property tax rates
D. Ordinance 23-003 An Ordinance Repealing Sierra County Spinlaunch LEDA, Ordinance

No. 21-001
E. Ordinance 23-004 Amendment to Personnel Policy Ordinance 16-009

XI. Executive Session (Section 10-15 E thru H):
Pending and Threatened Litigation:
Personnel

A. County Manager
Real Estate:

XII. Open Session Actions from Executive Session: Adjourn

Next proposed Scheduled Meeting: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, Nov 14th, 2023, at 10:00 AM. Items for 
the agenda must be submitted to the Sierra County Administration Office no later than 5:00pm on the 
Monday the week before the meeting. 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or 
meeting please contact the Sierra County Manager, at 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6215 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible.  
Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats. 
Please contact the Sierra County Manager if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 



          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

        SEPTEMBER 13, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER:   10:00 am Regular Meeting 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Regular Session 
at 10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, September 13, 2023, at the Sierra County 
Commission Chambers, 1712 N. Date St, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico. 

ROLL CALL: 

Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 

Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 

Clerk of Board: Shelly K. Trujillo 

County Attorney: David Pato 

County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 

Kayce Edwards, Mike Hearn, Josh Baker, chuck Wentworth-Sentinel, 
Candace Chavez, Serina Bartoo, Ryan Williams, Jessica West, Michelle 
Atwell  

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

A. Regular Meeting-July 18, 2023
B. Special Meeting-July 28, 2023
C. Special Meeting-August 17, 2023
D. Special Meeting June 27, 2023



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
September 13, 2023 
Page 2 

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the minutes as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  

III. PUBLIC COMMENT: LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES

Gerald Boland expressed he would like for the Commission meetings to go
back to being evening meetings.  

Mr. Boland also stated that he is invoking the 4 corner rule because the 
Governor’s oath is invalid. 

Mr. Boland would also like to see money withheld from schools as they are 
teaching them to hate the government. 

Mr. Boland also stated that the elections have not been valid because of the 
machines. 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:

A. Resolution No. 110-185- Account Payables

B. Resolution No. 110-186- Budget Adjustments

C. Resolution No. 110-187- Indigent Claims

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Consent Agenda as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

V. PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS:

A. Years of Service award
B. Department Reports
C. Update on Multipurpose Fair Building and Swine Facility

County Manager Vaughn gave a brief update on the Multipurpose Fair 
Building. 

VI. BOARD OF FINANCE:

A. July Reconciliation
B. August Reconciliation



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
September 13, 2023 
Page 3 

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the April Reconciliation 
as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  

VII. OLD BUSINESS:

VIII. NEW BUSINESS:

A. Direction to Publish Amendment to Personnel Policy Ordinance 16-009

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Direction to Publish
Amendment to Personnel Policy Ordinance 16-009 as presented.
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.

B. Direction to Publish Ordinance Authorizing Repayment to the New Mexico
Economic Development Department for the Local Economic Development
Act Project to SpinLaunch for the Termination of the Project Participation
Agreement

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Direction to Publish
Ordinance Authorizing Repayment to the New Mexico Economic
Development Department for the Local Economic Development Act Project
to SpinLaunch for the Termination of the Project Participation Agreement
as presented. Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes.

C. Financial Support of the National Center for Public Lands Counties
Consideration

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to Table Financial Support of the
National Center for Public Lands Counties Consideration as presented.
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes.

D. Consideration of SWCCA Joint Booth

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Consideration of
SWCCA Joint Booth as presented. Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes.

E. Road Vacation Request VR23-001 for Portion of Oak Street in Kingston

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Road Vacation Request VR23-
001 for Portion of Oak Street in Kingston as presented. Commission Vice-



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
September 13, 2023 
Page 4   

 

Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner 
Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
F.  Request to Vacate Remaining Portio of Miranda’s Highland Retreat Unit 

No. 1 Subdivision 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Request to Vacate 

Remaining Portio of Miranda’s Highland Retreat Unit No. 1 Subdivision as 
presented. Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
G.  Appointment of Sharon Luna, LaNeer Wrye and Bruce Swingle as 

Freeholders to View the Request to Vacate a Portion of Lula Street in 
Kingston with Ronnie Chavez as an Alternate 

 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Appointment of Sharon Luna, 

LaNeer Wrye and Bruce Swingle as Freeholders to View the Request to 
Vacate a Portion of Lula Street in Kingston with Ronnie Chavez as an 
Alternate as presented. Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
H.  Approval to Receive Donation of Fire Apparatus from Dona Ana County to 

Sierra County: 2 Fire Trucks, 1994 International Luverne Pumpers 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Approval to Receive 

Donation of Fire Apparatus from Dona Ana County to Sierra County: 2 Fire 
Trucks, 1994 International Luverne Pumpers as presented. Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner 
Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

      
IX. CONTRACTS – AGREEMENTS – PROCUREMENT 

 
A.  New Mexico Memorandum of Understanding Office of the Secretary of 

State and Sierra County 
   
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve New Mexico Memorandum of 

Understanding Office of the Secretary of State and Sierra County as 
presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
B.  Memorandum of Agreement between Sierra County and the Southwest 

Council of Governments 
 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Memorandum of Agreement 

between Sierra County and the Southwest Council of Governments as 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
September 13, 2023 
Page 5   

 

presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
C.  Rise Grant Agreement-Official Approval-Detention 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Memorandum of Rise 

Grant Agreement-Official Approval-Detention Agreement between Sierra 
County and the Southwest Council of Governments as presented.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
D.  BHIZ Grant Agreement-Official Approval-Detention 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve BHIZ Grant Agreement-

Official Approval-Detention as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 

 
E.  COSSAP Grant Agreement-Detention 
 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve COSSAP Grant Agreement-

Detention as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
F.  Catalis Enterprise-Cama System-Sole Source-Assessor 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Catalis Enterprise-

Cama System-Sole Source-Assessor as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 

 
G.  Triadic-Sole Source Agreement-Administration 
 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Triadic-Sole Source Agreement-

Administration as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED 
the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
 

X. RESOLUTIONS – ORDINANCES – PROCLAMATIONS 
 

A.  Resolution No. 110-180-Designating the Location of Election Day Polling 
Places for all Statewide Elections Conducted in 2024 and 2025 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-188-
Amended Take Home Vehicle Policy as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
September 13, 2023 
Page 6   

 

SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 
 
B.  Resolution No. 110-189-A Resolution to Approve 2023 Tax Rates 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-189-A 
Resolution to Approve 2023 Tax Rates as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair 
Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 
1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

  XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION SECTION (10-15-E THRU H): 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to go into Executive Session for 

Personnel, Real Estate, Pending and Threatened Litigation.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Roll call vote was taken with all 
Commissioners present voting yes.   
 
            District 1 – Yes 
 District 2 – Yes 
 District 3 – Yes 

 
            PENDING AND THREATENED LITIGATION: 
 
 A.  Caouette v. Sierra County 
                                                                 
           PERSONNEL: 
      
            REAL ESTATE:  
 
            DISPOSAL OF REAL PROPERTY 
 
            XII. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to come back into Regular Session.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Roll call vote was taken, 
with all Commissioners present voting yes. 

 
 

 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT REGULAR SIERRA COUNTY 
COMMISSION MEETING:  
 
The date and time of the next Regular Sierra County Commission Meeting 
has been scheduled for Tuesday, October 17, 2023 at 10:00 A.M. at the 
Albert J Lyon Event Center at 2953 S Broadway,  Truth or Consequences, 
New Mexico. 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
September 13, 2023 
Page 7   

 

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting. Commission Vice-
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.    
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 13th day of September, 2023. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
September 13, 2023 
Page 8   

 

 ________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner James E Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 
 

   
 



 

      
          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
        SEPTEMBER 15, 2023 

 
   

CALL TO ORDER: 10:00 A.M. 
 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Special Session at 
10:00 A.M. on Friday, September 15, 2023, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N Date, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 

 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman-Absent 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
  
 Clerk of Board: Shelly Trujillo  
 
 County Attorney: Dave Pato-by phone 
           
 County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Chuck Wentworth-Sentinel, David Reedy, Jessica West 
          

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1 and 3 voting yes. 

 
                            II.  PUBLIC COMMENT-LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES 

 
David Reedy thanked the Commission for their stance on the issue at hand. 

 
  III.  RESOLUTIONS-ORDINANCES-PROCLAMATIONS 

 
A.  Resolution No. 110-190-A Resolution of support to Defend the Constitution 

of the United States and the Bill of Rights, the Constitution of the State of 



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
September 15, 2023 
Page 2   

 

New Mexico, Protecting the Sovereign Rights of the Citizenry Thereof, and 
Providing for Means and Authorization for the Same 

 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-190-A 

Resolution of support to Defend the Constitution of the United States and the 
Bill of Rights, the Constitution of the State of New Mexico, Protecting the 
Sovereign Rights of the Citizenry Thereof, and Providing for Means and 
Authorization for the Same as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1 and 
3 voting yes. 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting.   
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission Vice- 
Chair Paxon adjourned the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
September 15, 2023 
Page 3   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 28th day of July, 2023. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 

   
 

















































































































































































































State of New Mexico

Shelly K Trujillo
County Clerk
575-894-2840

Candace Chavez
County Treasurer

57s-894-3s24

Michael Huston
County Assessor

575-894-2589

Tom Pestak
Probate Judge
s75-740-4900

County of Sierra

James Paron
Commissioner
575-894-62 I 5

Hank Hopkins
Commissioner
575-894-62 I 5

Travis Day
Commissioner
575-894-621 5

Joshua Baker
County Sheriff
575-894-9r 50

Amber Vaughn, County Manager
5 7 5-894-62 1 5 voice 5 7 5-894-9 54E fax

Resolution No. 110-192
A BudgeUline ltem Adjustment Resolution lncrease Revenue and Expense in Funds 419,605,401,

510, 509, 512,629,402,409,407,414,411,410,425,426,413,428,604 and 500 & Decrease Expense
in 500 and Decrease Revenue and Expense in 604.

Whereas, the Board of Siena County Commissioners, meeting in regular public session
October 17 ,2023, deem it necessary to increase and decrease in the said line items in the budget;

Whereas, adjust budget in Community Projects, June 2023 bills paid in July, 2023 in Correction Fund,
money received from State of NM for Clerk's Regular Local Election School, LDW! repayments for DWI
Grant & Distribution Funds, check written for relocation package of HR position, money received from State
of NM for Second Quarter payment for Wildland Coordinator and Dept. of Homeland Security for Calf
Canyon/Hermits Peak Fire, money received from City of Elephant Butte for work done on Backhoe and
Broom for Road, correct Fire Department budgets for FY24, and correct budget for CLLA from Grant
Project fund, budget money for Laws of 2023 Retention & Recruitment, correct Laws of 2022 Reallocation
and increase expense in Bridge of Grace;

Thefore Be lt Resolved, that the Sierra County Board of Commissioners hereby move to
lmplement the line item adjustments in the FY 2023-2024 Operating Budget as described below:

1712 N. Date, Suite D
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901

Genera l-Refu n d s/Re i m bu rsements
E me rg e ncy Manag e me nt-Refu nds/Rei mbu rsements
Road Department-Refu nds/Reimbursements

Arrey Derry Fire Department-State Fire Allotment
Caballo Fire Department-State Fire Allotment
Hillsboro Fire Department-State Fire Allotment
Las Palomas Fire Department-State Fire Allotment
Monticello Fire Department-State Fire Allotment
Poverty Creek Fire Department-State Fire Allotment
Fire Admin-State Fire Allotment
Winston Fire Department-State Fire Allotment
Law Enforcement-z}z3 L E RR

lncrease Revenue
401-0-1260

629-0-1260

402-0-1260

409-0-1560

413-0-1560

407-0-1560

414-0-1560

411-0-1560

425-0-1560

426-0-1560

410-0-1560

604-0-1575

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

16,369.67
13,268.45

3,350.00

5,767.00

4,977.00
6,093.00

4,740.00

6,004.00

4,029.00
4,503.00

5,767.00
150,000.00

NEW MEXICO
SIERRA COUN



!ncrease Expense
419-13-2778
419-13-2782

419-13-2902
605-86-2800
605-86-2889

510-37-2106

509-38-2106
512-00-2790
401-05-2111
413-80-2251
409-77 -2900

409-77 -2999

407 -75-2900

407 -75-2999

414-83-2900
414-83-2999

411-78-2900

411-78-2999

410-74-2900
410-74-2999

425-59-2900

425-59-2999

426-45-2900
426-45-2999

413-80-2900

413-80-2999

426-45-2441
402-50-2330

428-00-2012

428-00-2410

428-00-2094

604-85-2095

500-50-2747

512-50-2747

500-00-2012

500-00-2410

500-00-2094

604-85-2093

50,375.00

6,750.00
1,000.00

15,865.00

133,735.94

5.40
33,478.62
6,000.00

16,368.67
47 ,282.69
95,003.85
95,003.85

332,247.18

137,598.40

194,933.53

183,1 23.79

130,268.68

130,269.67

159,271.75

159,271.74

81,173.98

81,173.97

43,164.7 4

43,164,7 4

50,265.46

50,265.45

595.00

3,350.00
19,530.00

64,877.00

1 10,996.00

150,000.00

45,300.00

57,552.00

Commun ity Projects-SJ OA
Commun ity Projects-Extension Agent
Community Projects-Sierra Animal Shelter
Correction Fund-Juvenile Fees

Correction Fund-Prisoner Housing
DWI Grant-Contract Services
DWI Distribution-Contract Services
LATCF-Special Projects
General-Other Election Expense
Caballo Fire Department-State Forestry Equipment
Arrey Derry Fire Department-Capital Outlay
Arrey Derry Fire Department-Capital under $5000
Hillsboro Fire Department-Capital Outlay
Hillsboro Fire Department-Capital under $5000
Las Palomas Fire Department-Capital Outlay
Las Palomas Fire Department-Capital under $5000
Monticello Fire Department-Capita! Outlay
Monticello Fire Department-Capital under $5000
Winston Fire Department-Capital Outlay
Winston Fire Department-Capital under $5000
Poverty Creek Fire Department-Capital Outlay
Poverty Creek Fire Department-Capital under $5000
Fire Admin-Capital Outlay
Fire Admin-Capital under $5000
Caballo Fire Department-Capital Outlay
Caballo Fire Department-Capital under $5000
Fire Admin-Fuel
Road-EquipmenWehicle Maintenance
CLLA-Administrative Fees

CLLA-Prevention

CLLA-CLLA Compensation
Law Enforcement-2l23 LE RR Salaries
Grant Project-Bridge of Grace
LATCF-Bridge of Grace

Grant Project-Administrative Fees

Grant Project-Prevention

Grant Project-CLLA Compensation
Law Enforcement-LE Appropriation Stipend

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Decrease Revenue
604-0-1574 Law Enforcement-LE Appropriation

Deqease Expense

$ 37,500.00

19,530.00

64,877.00
1 10,896.00

32,500.00

$

$

$

$



Passed, Approved and Adopted this 17th day of October 2023.

Attest:

Shelly K. Trujillo, County Clerk

Board of County Commissioners
Sierra County, New Mexico

Travis Day, Chairman

James Paxon, Vice-Chairman

Hank Hopkins, Member



State of New Mexico

Shelly Trujillo
County Clerk
575-894-2840

Candace Chavez
County Treasurer

575-894-3s24

Michael Huston
County Assessor

575-894-2589

Tom Peslak
Probate Judge
575-894-2840

1712 Date
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901

Amber Yaughn County Manager
5 75-894-62 1 5 voice 57 5-894-9 548 fax

County of Sierra

Travis Day
Chairman

575-894-621 5

lYilliam Hopkins
Commissioner
575-894-6215

James Paxon
Vice-Chairman
575-894-621 5

Josh Baker
County Sheriff
575-894-9150

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONBRS
SIERRA COUNTY, NEW NEXICO

Resolution No. 110-193

Indigent Claims

WHEREAS, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners has received Indigent Hospital and Medical
Claim request for those persons unable to make proper restitution for Medical Services in the amount of
1330.90 new claims, and;

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners desire to provide for the equitable and
reasonable payment of claims, and;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sierra County Board of Commissioners hereby approve
payment to those Indigent Hospital Claims in the amount of:

Sole community Providers in the amount of $ 1330.90

to be deducted from the proper funds appropriated in the 2023-2024PY Budget. October 17 .2023

Board of County Commissioners
Sierra County, NM

TRAVIS DAY, CHAIRMAN

JAMES PAXON, VICE-CHAIRMAN

Attest:

SHELLY K. TRUJILLO
SIERRA COUNTY CLERK

NEW MEXICO
SIERRA COUN

WILLIAM HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER



SIERRA COUNTY INDIGENT HEALTH CARE
RESOLUTION NO. 11 0-193

CLAIMS APPROVED FOR $ 1330.90

VENDOR# 12775 LI.]NA COUNTY DETENTION

VENDOR# 5616 CHETAH SHIVARAM DDS

VENDOR# 12OO COUNTY OF SOCORRO

VENDOR # 2853 MIMBRES MEMORIAL

VENDOR# 5494 CASSIE HEALTH

Total

I S 360.00

6 $ 273.90

1 $ 432.00

1 $ 1698.69

I $ 96.31

1330.90



OIHS

lssued 10102123

Source Description

Source Totals RePort
CountY Of Sierra

Batch Dates 1011712023 through 1011712023

For Vendor: All Vendors

Amount Billed Amount Paid

01

02
04
07

Source Totals Report Detail
lnvoice #

Jail - Physician Services
Jail - ln House lnmate Service
Jail - Hospital Out-Patient
Jail - Dental

350.00
792,00

1,444.84
273.90

96.31
792.00
168.69
273.90

Expenditures
Reimb/Adjustments

Grand Total

Source

2,860.74 1,330.90

2,860.74 1,330.90

DOS Amount Billed Amount Paid

16274*5494*5

1 invoices, 1 line items

INMATE*1200-13
lNMATE"2775.25

2 invoices, 2 line items

16274*2853*2

1 invoices, 1 line items

1 001 0*561 6.1
10010*5616*1
1 5596.561 6.1
1 5596.561 6.1
1 6533.561 6.1
1 6533.561 6.1
12797.5616*2
12797*5616*2
12797.5616*2
13763.5616*2
1 3763.5616*2
1 3763.5616*2
16102.5616*2
16102.5616*2
16102.5616.2

6 invoices, 15 line items

01

07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07

0910812023

0911212023
0912112023

0610612023

350.00

432.00
360.00

96.31

432.00
360.00

350.00 96.31

02
02

04

792.00

1 ,444.84

792.00

168.69

0711512023
0711512023
0811212023
0811212023
0811212023
08t1212023
0811212023
08t1212023
0811212023
0811212023
0811212023
0811212023
0711512023
0711512023
0711512023

1,M4.84

28.94
11.14
28.94
11.14
28.94
11.14
28.94
11.14
11.14
28.94
11.14
11.14
28.94
11.14
11.14

168.69

28.94
11.14
28.94
11.14
28.94
11.14
28.94
11.14
11.14
28.94
11.14
11.14
28.94
11.14
11.14

273.90 273.90

Grand Totals

10 invoices listed.
19 line items listed.

2,860.74 1,330.90



State of New Mexico

Shelly Trujillo
County Clerk
s75-894-2840

Candace Chavez
County Treasurer

575-894-3524

Michael Huston
Countlt Assessor

575-894-2589

Tom Pestak
Probate Judge
575-894-2840

on

1712 Date St.
Truth or Consequences, New Mertco 87901

Amber Vaughn, County Manager
5 7 5-894-62 I 5 voice 57 5-894-9 548 fax

County of Sieruu

Travis Day
Chairman

575-894-6215

Hank Hopkins
Commissioner
575-894-621 5

James Paxon
Vice-Chairman
575-894-621 5

Joah Baker
County Sheriff
57s-894-91 s0

October 2,2023

Amber Vaughn
1712 Date St.

Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

RE: Cremation Approval-Peter Altendorf

Dear Ms. Vaughn:

Mr. Altendorf died 911212023. Mr. Altendorf has no assets that I can find. I have attached the
information that I came up with. I recommend that the county pick up the cost of cremation.

Thank you for your attention in this matter, and if you should have any questions or comments,
please let me know.

Thank You,

Lanta Engle
IHC Clerk

County Manager-Amber Vaughn

loh day of ahl^ (-0?,3

SIERRA COUN
rcoNEW



sT,{

FTo

NS
6 zoz3-oo1

lndigent and/or Unclaimed
OFFICE OF THE

MEDICAL INVESTIGATOR

State of New Mexico
Heather Jarrell, MD

Chief Medical Examiner
Lauren Dvorscak, MD lsslstant Chief

Medical Examiner

State of New Mexico
Michelle Lujan Grisham

Goventor
Howie Morales

Lieulenant Governor

Cover Letter

To: IB Program Sierra

Re: OMI# 2023-06633

From: The Office of the Medical Investigator

Date: 0912712023

Name of decedent: Altendorf, Peter

Address: 1400 N Silver Street

City, State, Zip:T oc C, New Mexico 87901

Date of birth: 0810311935

Sex: Male
SSN: 349-30-3231

Date and time of death: 0911212A23 07:42

Place of death: Sierra Vista Hospital 800 East 9th Avenue

City, county, zip: Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901

Cause of death: Pending

Manner of death: Pending

Dave ID:

Race: White

Veteran Status: Not a Veteran

Legal next-of-kin: nla

Address:

City, State, Zip:
Phone:

Relationship to decedent:

Signed release of disposition?

Additional person who may be able to assist the

county if further information is needed:

Name:

Address:

City, State, Zip:
Phone:

Relationship to decedent:

The OMI has retained custody of the decedent in excess of the two weeks, as required by law (NMSA
1978, Section 24-13-1 (1999)), exercised due diligence in attempting to notify the relatives of the

deceased, and has determined that the decedent is unclaimed.

The OMI certifies this body to be unsuited or unnecessary for medical education and is releasing it to the

state, county, or municipal officials having charge or control of the body for burial or cremation (I{MSA
1978, Section 24-13-2 (1999)). The OMI will store the body for a maximum of 30 days, as required by

law, from the date of this notification.

,. Ogllally olgned by Adrlana Graharn-Tones

.., Dato: 2023.09.21 07:55:43 {6'00'Deputy Medical Investigator:

Investigations Supervisor :

Chief Medical Investigator:

Date:

Date:

Date: t
505.272.3053 . Fax 505.925.0546

The University of New Mexlco Health Sclences Center . MSC07 4040 . 1 Universlty of New Mexlco . Albuquerque, NM 87131-0001 Phone

04lt4l202tER



9129123,4:25PM New Mexico's Online Motor Vehicle Record System

IVIVD

MotorVehicle lnformation Search Results asof 91292A234:25:13 PM

Vehicle lnformation Registration I nformation

Body:4DV
Vehicle Class: Passenger Vehicle

Cylinders:6
Fuel: G

MaKe: BUIC

Mode!: CLM

ModelYear: 1992

Number of Doors: 0

VIN #1 : 3G4A154N5NS606470

Weight:2600
Passenger Safe Quantity: 0

Primary Color: UNK

Secondary Color:
Vehicle Type: PV

lnsurance Status: Unknown

Title lnformation

Title Status: ACTIVE

Title Nu mber: 07 023321 A54227 4

Duplicate Flag: False

Number of Liens: 0

Odometer Code: AC

Odometer Reading: 1 41 080

Sale Price:300
Title lssue Date: 112312007

Title Only: Title and Reg

Title Purchase Date: 1123/2007

Tit|e Use: SALVGE

Plate Number:JCA283

County: SIERRA

DGVW: 2600

Emissions Flag: False

Emissions Year Due: 0

First Year Registration: 1996

Fleet lD:0
NLET PIATC COdC: PC

NM MVD PIATE COdC: YELCEN

Weight:2600
Non Use:

Plate Type: YELCEN

Plate lssued: 9/312016

Registration Date: 1 /1512008

Registration Suspension Date: 1 l1 10001

Registration Expire Date: 2/ 1 /2009

Registration Type: PV

Special Plate:
CMV lndicator:0

Mobile Homes

County:
Length:
width:
Location:
Plate 1:

Plate 2:

Plate 3:

AdditionalVlNs:
Title Assignment:

Owners: 1

https://secure.mvd.newmexico.govffLRlnteractiveAgency/SearchResults.aspx 112

The vehicle has an Expired status

Registration Status: EXPI RE



9129123,4:25 PM

First Name: PETER

Last NAME: ALTENDORF

Middle lnitia!: W
Residential Street 1: 2103 S BROADWAY

Residential Street 2:

Residential City: T OR C

Residential State: NM

Residential ZIP: 87901

Mailing street 1:2103 s BROADWAY

Mailing Street 2:

Mailing City: T OR C

Mailing State: NM

Mailing ZIP:87901

Liens:0

Brands: 1

Brand Date: 913/2016

Brand Code: SLVG

Brand Description: Salvage

Brand Jurisdiction:

New Mexico's Online Motor Vehicle Record System

Copyright O MVD New Mexico 2019-2Q23

https://secure.mvd.newmexico.govffLRlnteractiveAgency/SearchResults.aspx 212



9129123,4:25PM New Mexico's Online Motor Vehicle Record System

MotorVehicle lnformation Search Results as of 9129/2a234:25:40 PM

The vehicle has an ExPired status

Registration Status: EXPI RE

Vehicle lnformation

Body:4DV
Vehicle Class: Passenger Vehicle

Cylinders:8
Fuel: G

Make: OLDS

Model: CLS

Model Year: 1980

Number of Doors: 0

VIN #1:3R69FAM494530

Weight:3393
Passenger Safe QuantitY: 0

Primary Color: WHI

Secondary Color:

Vehicle Type: PV

lnsurance Status: Active

Title lnformation

Title Status: ACTIVE

Title Number: 061 17 121 A7 64790

Duplicate Flag: False

Number of Liens: 0

Odometer Code: NA

Odometer Reading: 888888

Sale Price:400
Title lssue Date: 412712046

Title Only: Title and Reg

Title Purchase Date: 412712006

TitIE USC: STNDRD

Registration I nformation

Plate Number: HTK631

County: SIERRA

DG\M: 3393

Emissions Flag: False

Emissions Year Due: 0

First Year Registration: 1997

Fleet lD:0
NLET P|ate COdE: PC

NM MVD PIATC COdC: BALPLT

Weight:3393
Non Use:

Plate Type: BALPLT

Plate lssued: 9/312016

Registration Date: 4127 D0A6

Registration Suspension Date: 1 l1 /0401

Registration Expire Date: 5/1 /2007

Registration Type: PV

Special Plate:

CMV lndicator:0

Mobile Homes

County:
Length:
width:
Location:
Plate 1:

Plate 2:

Plate 3:

AdditionalVlNs:
Title Assignment:

Owners: 1

https://secure.mvd.newmexico.govffLRlnteractiveAgency/SearchResults.aspx 112



9129123,4:25PM

First Name: PETER

Last NAME: ALTENDORF

Middle lnitial:
Residential Street 1: HC 31 BOX 42

Residential Street 2:

Residential CitY: Wl LLIAMSBU RG

Residential State: NM

Residential ZIP: 87942

Mailing Street 1: HC 31 BOX 42

Mailing Street 2:

Mailing City: Wl LLIAIVISBURG

Mailing State: NM

Mailing ZIP:87942

Liens:0

Brands:0

New Mexico's Online Motor Vehicle Record System

Copyright CI fvlvD New Mexico 2019-2023

https://secure.mvd.newmexico.gov/TLRlnteractiveAgency/SearchResults.aspx 2t2



f.A\tll\ l't \l:RAl ll()\ll: .l\(

S

SIERRA CREIvIATORY' LLC

October 3, 2023

Amber Vaughn, Sierra County Manager
County of Sierra
l7l2 N. Date Street, Suite D
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

RE : Indisent Claim For: Peter Altendorf
Date of Death: September 12,2023

Dear Ms. Vaughn:

We are requesting your signature on the attached Authorization for Cremation form
and OMI RemoviiAfnairit so we can proceed with obtaining a Cremation Permit

from the Office of the Medical Investigator for the cremation of Peter Altendorf.
Mr. Altendorf died at Sierra Vista Hospital on September 12, 2023. The Office of
the Medical Investigators have extinguished all avenues trying to locate next of kin
and are therefore serdirrg him back as an unclaimed indigent. We have attached

an Application for Indigent Burial for approval. Th9 Office of the Medical Examiner
issueJthe Cremation Permit to us free of charge for Indigent Cases as long as we
send them documentation from your office that the case has been approved.

We will appreciate all your effons and thank you for your consideration and help
with regard to the County of Sierra's approval for this Indigent Burial Claim.

Sincerel

Re
OSF Y FI-INERAL HOME, INC.

Enclosure

SoS N.Cedar Street
P.O. Box ttz
Truth or Consequences, NM 879ot
Telephone
(szil 8gq-zsz+
Facsimile
Gzd 8g+-6gts
Email
kirikos@kirikosffi.com



SIERRA CREMATORY, LLC,
P. O. Box 112 - 303 Cedar Street
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901
TELEPHONE - 575 / 894-2574
FAX 575/894-6815

AUTHORIZATION FOR CREMATION

Dare of Death: SEPTEMBER 12,2023

Crematorv ID #
J

SEPTEMBER 12,2023

The undersigned hereby authorizes SIERRA CREMATORY. LLC. to cremate the remains of:

PETER ALTENDORF
First Name Middle Last

That he/she has the legal rieht to authorize and direct the
cremation, interment and/6r disp-osition of said remains and agrees
to hold the above Crematory dnd Xtrikos Family Funeral Home,
Inc., its officers, agents and e-mployees harmlessfroq any and all
loss, costs, or dam-ages it or thel' may suffer or incur by reason of
acting upon the order and authorization set tbrth.

That the remains delivered to the crematory are those only of the
deceased named herein.

That the body will be delivered in a suitable, rigid container.

That the Office of the Medical Investigator's signed Cremation
Permit will accompany the body.

That the deceased has not had a pacemaker implanted or radiation-
producins implant device or ani other life-sustaining device that
bould be-expfosive. Or, if such a device exists, he/she agrees to
have the Fuheral Director or others remove it before cremation.
He/she also understands that in the event of failure to notifu the
Funeral Director or others responsible for the removal of such
device, he/she will be liable fof any damages to the Crematory or
ioju.y to crematory personnel.

That ALL non-combustible materials delivered with the body will
NOT be returned with the cremated remains, but will become the
property of, and be disposed of by the crematory.

I understand that if it is the intention to save ANY items it is my
responsibility to remove them before cremation.

The undersigned understands the cremated remains (hereafter
referred to a-s the cremains) are bone fragments which will be
oulverized to oermit their placement in an urn or other container.
In the event th'e capaciry ofthe urn other container is insufficient to
accommodate all^ of ihe cremains, the Crematory is hereby
authorized to make disposition of the remaining cremains at its
discretion, unless otherwise instructed in writing by the
undersigned.

Date of Death

That the SIERRA CREMATORY, LLC, will perform
cremation of the body and no warranties expressed or implied
are made, and damages shall be limited to the fee paid.

When cremating, the SIERRA CREMATORY, LLC, will
exercise reasonable efforts in keeping cremated remains

separate. However, because it is impossible to guarantee or
warrant that some bone particles or the residue of one

cremation could not possibly be mixed with those of another

cremation, I specifically give express permission for:
A) The cremation to take place including incidental or

inadvertent commingling of the cremains with
residue of prior cremations.

B) The processing of the cremains including crushing
or grinding. 1nd incidental commingling of the
cremains with residue from processing other cremains.

If the undersigned authorized the Mortuary or Crematory to
deliver the cremains via Priority Express Mail, he/she does

hereby agree to assume all liability for any damages that may
arise 

-from 
any cause growing out of said delivery and to

indemnifr and hold harmless the Mortuary/Crematory and
Funeral Director from any and all claims relating to said
shipment. A mailing fee will be charged for packaging, Priority
Mall Express Postage, and mailing to any location within the
Continental United States. tt is further agreed that if no final
arrangements are completed after (l) year following the
cremation the cremains will be disposed of in a lawful manner
without identification by Kirikos Family Funeral Home, Inc.

It is the responsibilitv of the family, NOT the Crematory or
Funeral Hohe to rirake sure all required signatures are
provided. It is also the responsibility rif the family, to notiff
kirikos Family Funeral Hbme, /nc, whenever any of the
information prbvided changes prior to death.

Thot oll choroes ore to be before cremotion con occur

io
Signature

Signature Date

Signature Date

KIRIKOS FAMILY FUNERAL HOME, [NC.

XX County Manager - l7l2 N. Date, T. or C., NM 87901

Relationship Address

Relationship Address

Relationship Address

T HEREBI'ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THE ABOI'E CREilIAII\'I

FTINERAL REBECCA S. GENTRY FSP 970

Signature Date

xx





OFFICE OF THE
MEDICAL INVESTIGATOR

Heather Jarrell, MD

Chief Medical lnvestigator
MSC07 4040
1 University of New Mexico
Albuquerque, NM 87131
Telephone: (505) 272-3053
Official website: omi.unm.edu

II${

OFFICE OF THE MEDICAL INVESTI GATOR REM OVAL AFF I DAVIT

DATE
101312023

DAVE E-VITA6ID NO:
31 60270

OMICASE NO.: 2023-06633

DECEDENT'S LEGAL NAME (First, Middle, Last, Suffix)

Peter Altendorf

08/03/1935Male
SEX ,ATEET-DEATn0uonth/DayAear)

0911212023

This autho rizes The Office of the Medical lnvestigotor in Albuquerque, New Mexico, to release the

remains and personal effects of the above listed decedent to the funeral home and/or agent.

Kirikos Fami Funeral Home, lnc.
Name and/or agent

Willthe body be embalmed at an Albuquerque funeral home: ruo E Ves E

FOR OUT.OF-TOWN FUNERAL HOMES ONLY

Name of funeral home

Long Distance Transport:

101312023
Date SentCremation Permit Request: Yes Date Requested:No tr

County Manager
RELATIONSHIPNEXT-OF-KIN NAME or County Agent (First, Middle, Last, Suffix)

Amber Vaughn
STATE

NM 87901

ztP

1712 N. Date Street

ADDRESS CITY

T.orC

575-894-6215

PART C

oMt

cAsE wPE (CHOOSE ONE)

AUTOPSY

EXTERNAL

tr
tr

JT tr Physician Name:

Phone Number:

PLACE OF DEATH OCCURRENCE - Give Name of Hospital or Other Facility (lf Neither, give Street Address or Location) NME OF DEATH

BODY READY FOR RELEASE: YeS rvo E
CURRENT WEIGHT:

OMISIGNATURE:

DATE:

The State of New Mexico
Office of the Medical lnvestigator Disclaimer

No death certificate and/or body will be released by the Office of the Medical lnvestigator to a funeral home until a

copy of this form, properly executed, is on file. Once on file 24 hours will be allotted to transport, after which a
storage fee of S6f .OO a day will be charged to the funeral home.

This form cannot be altered or duplicated.

OM l-Tha natopractice@sa I ud.u n m.ed u
05lt7lLt eg

PART A

DECEDENT

DATA

PARr B (1)

FUNERAL

HOME

PART B (21

LEGAL

NEXT-OF-KIN Or

County Agent



SIERRA COUNTY INDIGENT BURIAL
APPLICATION AND DECLARATION STATEMENT

Check No

Amount

Peter Altendorf

Name of Deceased

8l3lL93s
Date of Birth
1400 N. Silver St.

Address

T. or C., NM 87901

City State
***Please Circle***

Sierra County Resident? (YESyNO

lf YES, how long? Unknown

elL2/2O23 Kirikos Fa milv Funeral Home, lnc.

Date of Death Applicant

349-30-3231

Social Security # Date of Birth Social Security #

Previous Residence

Approved Date

Denied

DO YOU HAVE TNSURANCE? YES/NO

NAME OF INSURANCE COMPANYIF YES,

Name of Nearest Living Relative

No Nert of Kin came foruvord Have Medicare or Medicaid?

Address of Nearest Living Relative

WAS DEATH AS A RESULTOF ACCIDENT OR INJURY? IF YES, EXPLAIN

IS THERE ANY LEGAL ACTION PENDING AS RESULT OF ACCIDENT OR INJURY? YES,NO IF YES, EXPLAIN

S-
ON HAND SAVINGS CHECKING

NAME OF BANK OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

DID DECEDENT OWN OT RENT A HOME? VALUE BAL. OWED

lFDEcEDENTWAsRENTlNG,NAMEANDADDEssoFLANDLoRD?

DID DECEDENT OWN ANY REAL ESTATE? YES/NO IF YE' DESCRIBE REAL ESTATE, VALUE, BALANCE OWED AND

LOCATION

WHAT IS THE APPROXIMATE VALUE OF DECEDENT,S HOUSEHOLD GOODS?

DESCRIBE ANY OTHER MAJOR ASSETS (ITEMS OF VALUE OWNED BY DECEDE

FOR !NDIGENT CLAIMS OFFICE USE ONLY

VERIFIED BY:

EM PLOYM ENT:

RESIDENCY:

ASSESSOR:

RENT:

INCOME TAX RETURN:

HOW MUCH CASH DID DECEDENT HAVE? S- S-

q



SIERRA COUNTY INDIGENT BURIAL
APPLICATION AN D DECLARATION STATEMENT

vEHrcLE(S) OWNED BY DECEDENT

L.

MAKE MODEL VALUE BALANCE

2

MAKE

NUMBER OF DEPENDANTS?

MONTHLY INCOME

s
MODEL VALUE BALANCE

s s

SOURCE OF DECEDENT'S G ROSS

s

SOURCE OF DECEDENT'S G ROSS

WAGES STILL OWED DECEDENT

DEBTS AMD MONTHLY COMMITMENTS:

PAYMENTS TO : BALANCE AMOUNT

G ROSS

PAYMENTS TO

NAME NEXT OF KIN AND ADDRESS:

NET

S

NET

NET

BALANCE AMOUNT

NEAREST FRIEND AND ADDRESS:

ARE ANY OF THE ABOVE ABLE TO ASSIST FINANCIALLY?

I HEREBY AUTHORIZE RELEASE OF INFORMATION CONCERNING THE ABOVE STATEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF SIERRA:

I CERTIFY THAT I HAVE READ THIS APPLICATION AND SWEAR THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN IT IS TRUE TO THE

BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

I, UNDERSTAND THAT ALL INFORMATION ON THIS APPLICATION IS SUBJECT TO INVESTIGATION.

! HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM UNABLE TO PAY FOR THE COST OF BURIAL IN THE AMOUNT OF AND

QUALIFY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE BURIAL OF INDIGENTS. ANY FALSE STATEMENTS ON THIS FORM MADE

KNOWINGLY BY ME CONSTITUTES A FELONY AND COULD RESULT IN A PRISON SENTENCE AND/OR FINE.

DATED THIS _DAY OF , 20-
APPLICANT

STATE OF NEW MEXTCO)

)SS.

couNTY oF STERRA )

SUBSCRIBED TO AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS DAY OF

NOTARY PUBLTC (SEAL)

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

)0

s





















AutoCAD SHX Text
3039102108293

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039102226426

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039102241511

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039102200342

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039102040420

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040102302342

AutoCAD SHX Text
3041103043414

AutoCAD SHX Text
3041103041292

AutoCAD SHX Text
3041103124216

AutoCAD SHX Text
3041103140111

AutoCAD SHX Text
3041103062032

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103400080

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103394160

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103458255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103195126

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103478425

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103264046

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103167320

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST & WATERMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103032353

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.73 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039103467128

AutoCAD SHX Text
COSPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
117.343 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039103345202

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAULKNER & HASBROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.58 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039103290320

AutoCAD SHX Text
KRAKOWIAK LIVING TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.17 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039103116193

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
208.27 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039103296417

AutoCAD SHX Text
PETERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039103342509

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039103040443

AutoCAD SHX Text
BILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103094484

AutoCAD SHX Text
SZERLIP-SUDDUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.30 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040104052133

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
156.185 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.002 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
42.98 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOOD SPRING LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.89 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039104304088

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOOD SPRING LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.95 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039104173120

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
182.691 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
355.34 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3038103406314

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039104224053

AutoCAD SHX Text
3041103019204

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
440.88 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSTLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.00 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.75 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.99 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.50 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039102213367

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.199 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tr 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tr 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tr 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tr 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tr 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tr 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039103407165

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRING LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.49 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCH RAIN LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCH RAIN LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCH RAIN LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCH RAIN LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCH RAIN LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103096533

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOOD SPRINGS LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.89 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3038104261069

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.23 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUGHES c/o

AutoCAD SHX Text
3040103040059

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.052 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOULES

AutoCAD SHX Text
3039102140371



CLAIM OF EXEMPTION 23-003 

SIGNATURE PAGE  

 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

_____________________________________________   
COMMISSION CHAIRMAN    DATE 
 
 
_____________________________________________  
COMMISSION VICE CHAIRMAN   DATE 
 
 
_____________________________________________  
COMMISSION MEMBER    DATE 
 
 
 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
 
_____________________________________________  
PLANNING COORDINATOR    DATE 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________  
COUNTY CLERK     DATE 















SIERRA COUNTY 

CODIFYING THE NEW MEXICO ENABLING ACT 

ORDINANCE NO: 23-005 

PASSED: ____________ 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 30 DAYS 



SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ORDINANCE № 23-005 

CODIFYING THE NEW MEXICO ENABLING ACT 

PREAMBLE:

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners met upon notice of a Business 
Meeting, duly published, at the Sierra County Administration Building, 1712 N Date St, New 
Mexico 87901 on November 14, 2023, at 10:00 AM as required by law; and,  

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-18-1 (1972) provides that municipalities, and also counties 
pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995), have the power to “protect generally the 
property of its municipality and its inhabitants” and to “preserve peace and order”; and, 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 et seq. (1975) provides that counties may adopt 
ordinances, not inconsistent with statutory or constitutional limitations placed on counties, to 
discharge those powers necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, 
promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the county 
and its inhabitants. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Sierra County Board of Commissioners that 
Sierra County will not recognize nor enforce any State Law, Mandate or Order that violates or is 
contrary to, the provisions of the Enabling Act for New Mexico. The ratification of the 
“Compact with the United States” and Proclamation Admitting New Mexico as a State into the 
Union on January 6, 1912, established the State of New Mexico is an inseparable part of the 
federal union and the Constitution of the United States as the supreme law of the land. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the Sierra County Board of 
Commissioners that any Law, Mandate or Order issued by the Government of the State of New 
Mexico or agent thereof that is contrary to the Constitution of the United States is void and not 
enforceable within the boundaries of this County. 

ADOPTED, APPROVED AND ORDAINED on this ___ day of _____________2023. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 



______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman  

______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 



SIERRA COUNTY 

INDIGENT HEALTH CARE 
ORDINANCE  

NO. 23-006 

PASSED: _____________ 

EFFECTIVE:  __________ 

Page 1 of 15 



Page 2 of 15 

SIERRA COUNTY 
ORDINANCE NO. 23-006

AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING INDIGENT HOSPITAL CLAIMS TO REPLACE 
ALL ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED BY THE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, New Mexico, is 
required by law to sit as the Sierra County Indigent Hospital Claims Board for the purpose 
of administering the Indigent Hospital and County Health Care Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 
27-5-1 to 27-5-18 (1965, as amended through 2004), and adopting Rules and Regulations 
for the processing of said claims; and,

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Indigent Hospital Claims Board has seen the need to adopt 
Rules and Regulations for the processing of Indigent Hospital Claims; and, 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Indigent Hospital Claims Board desires to establish a 
maximum income for any individual who may seek to claim benefits under the Indigent 
Hospital Claims Act from Sierra County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Sierra County Board of Commissioners 
as follows: 

SECTION 1 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.1 Title.   This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “Sierra County Indigent 
Hospital/Health Care (IHC) Ordinance” and shall be referred to herein as the IHC 
Ordinance. 

1.2 Authority.  This Ordinance is created pursuant to the Indigent Hospital Claims and 
County Health Care Act, Section 27-5-1 NMSA 1978 et seq. 

1.3 Purpose.  The purpose of this ordinance is to assist the indigent residents of Sierra 
County to obtain health care.  To further this goal, the County has adopted this 
ordinance which recognized the County’s responsibility to assist indigents in paying 
for health care.  

1.4 Interpretation.  The County Manager shall interpret the meaning ot the provisions of 
this Ordinance.  Whenever any provision of this Ordinance conflicts with other laws, 
rules, regulations or ordinances, the more restrictive shall govern. 

1.5 Approval of Claims by the IHC Board.   All IHC Claims paid to eligible recipients 
shall be approved by the Board of County Commissioners, sitting as the IHC Board.   

1.6 Decision in Writing.  The IHC Board shall state in writing the reasons for their decision 
to approve or disapprove any claim.  



Page 3 of 15 

1.7 Administrative Expenses.   In accordance with Section 27-5-1 NMSA 1978, a 
percentage of funds received by the County shall be reserved and budgeted for 
administrative expenses.  The funds budgeted as administrative expenses shall not be 
available for payments of IHC Claims. 

1.8 Claims Subrogation.   The IHC Board is permitted to recover costs and payments in 
accordance with Section 27-5-14 and 27-5-15 NMSA 1978. 

1.9 Open Meetings.  The IHC Board shall conduct their meetings in accordance with the 
Open Meetings Act, Section 10-15-1 NMSA 1978. 

1.10 Appendices.  The schedules attached to this Ordinance as appendices may be revised, 
modified or amended by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners. 

1.11 Amendments.  Amendments to this Ordinance shall be approved by the IHC Board at a 
public hearing after providing notice of the public hearing in accordance with New 
Mexico State Statutes. 

1.12 Severability.  It is the intent of the governing body that the sections, paragraphs, sentences, 
clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or section of the Ordinance shall be determined to be invalid for any  
reason, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs and sections of the Ordinance. 

SECTION II – DEFINITIONS 

The following terms are defined to be used for the purpose of this ordinance, regardless of 
common usage of such terms, or usage for other purposes. 

CLAIM:  Billing statements for an episode of illness, injury or other medical treatment as 
deemed necessary to an indigent patient. 

CLAIMANT:  A person who makes a claim for IHC assistance for medical services he or 
she received. 

CLAIMANT’S AGENT:  The individual authorized to provide consent for treatment of 
the claimant as specified in the New Mexico Hospital Association Legal Handbook. 

CLAIMANT’S REPRESENTATIVE:  The provider or individual that is authorized by 
the claimant or the claimant’s agent to submit a Formal Application on behalf of the 
claimant. 

CO-INSURANCE DAYS:  The total sum of money the patient is expected to pay as per 
co-insurance days which usually the sixty-first (61st) through the ninetieth (90th) day in 
each benefit period for which the patient pays the required amount per day himself.  The 
reserve period from the ninetieth (90th) day through the one hundred fiftieth   (150th) day 
for which the patient pays the required amount per day.  This reserve period is only sixth 
(60) days in the patient’s lifetime.
Definition is subject to change and will be applicable as defined in the Medicare Manual.



Page 4 of 15 

ELECTIVE SURGERY OR TREATMENT:  Non-emergency  hospital surgery or 
treatment, as recommended by physician(s).   This treatment is not medically necessary to 
the patient’s health or well-being, but can be requested by the patient. 

EMPLOYED OR CONTRACTED:  A physician that is employed by or contracts with a 
medical provider or provides services which are billed by the medical provider for the 
provider on routine, normal or regular basis.  

EMERGENCY:  Medical care required for a serious medical condition resulting from 
injury or illness that arises suddenly and required immediate care and treatment to avoid 
jeopardy to the life or health of an individual.  

HOME HEALTH AGENCY:  A profit or non-profit organization which provides 
Skilled Nursing Care, Physical Therapy, Speech or Occupational Therapy, Home Health 
Aide, medical supplies and prescribed medication to an indigent patient.  This 
organization is required to be certified and licensed by Medicare and the State of New 
Mexico. 

HOSPICE SERVICES:  An organization which provides care for the terminally ill 
patient which is licensed and certified by Medicare and the State of New Mexico.. These 
services include physicians’ services, skilled nursing care, physical and speech therapy, 
pastoral care, medically necessary prescribed medication related to terminal care, 
equipment, intravenous and other supplies. 

INDIGENT: “Indigent” is based on the definition of “indigent patient” pursuant to 
NMSA 27-5-4, Paragraph C, that defines indigent patient as persons to whom an 
ambulance service, a hospital or medical provider determined to be eligible under the 
provisions of the ordinance has provided medical care or ambulance transportation and 
who can normally support himself and his dependents on present income and liquid assets 
available to him but, taking into consideration this income and those assets and his 
requirement for other necessities of life for himself and his dependents, is unable to pay 
the cost of such medical services.  The policy of the IHC Board, established by the rules 
and regulations of this ordinance pursuant to NMSA 27-5-6, Paragraph C, specifies the 
provisions and criteria for determining which persons are qualified indigent persons and 
therefore eligible to receive IHC assistance, consistent with the above referenced statutory 
provision, that are deemed necessary to carry out the provisions of the Indigent Hospital 
and Health Care Act.  The IHC Board has permitted the use of the Sierra County IHC 
Income Schedule as a tool to be used to determine the income for an individual or family. 

LIQUID ASSETS:  Assets that can quickly or easily be converted to cash (bank accounts, 
CD’s, marketable securities, etc.). 

MEDICALLY INDIGENT:  An individual that needs medical care or treatment, but due 
to their individual circumstances are financially unable to pay the cost of such treatment.  
An individual that earns up to 150% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines is medically 
indigent for the purposes of this Ordinance. 

MEDICAL PROVIDER:  Any general or limited care certified hospital, institution or 
agency that is properly licensed and certified to provide medical services, and may be 



Page 5 of 15 

eligible to receive IHC reimbursement for medical services based on the provisions 
specified in this ordinance. 

NON-EMERGENCY SURGERY OR TREATMENT:  The treatment or surgical 
procedure that is not for an emergency condition, but is medically necessary to the well 
being of the patient.  This treatment is eligible for assistance. 

NON-EMERGENCY TRANSPORTATION:  The transporting of indigent patients by a 
non-emergency vehicle.  This type of transport does not require any medical treatment to 
be rendered to the patient, unless as otherwise specified in the provider agreement with the 
Department of Transportation. 

OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES:  Hospital sponsored ambulatory care service 
for medical or surgical treatment of one or more organizational units, or components 
thereof, of the hospital, that are under the responsibility of the hospital and through which 
non-emergency health services are provided to patients who do not need to remain the 
hospital overnight as defined in the JCAH Manual.  Outpatient services are provided by 
Home Health Agencies, Hospice Providers, and Community Health Centers. 

PRENATAL SERVICES:  A patient uses the same process and making an application 
with the County.  The Indigent Hospital/Health Care Office pre-approves the eligible 
patient for services within three (3) days of receiving the application. 

PRIMARY HEALTH CARE:  Means the first level of basic or general health care for an 
individual’s health needs, including medical and dental diagnostic and treatment services, 
prescribed medication, referrals and supportive services.  All dental services must be 
provided in coordination with primary medical services.  Primary medical services are 
those provided as part of general family practice, obstetrics, gynecology, pediatrics, 
general surgery, or general internal medicine. 

PRO-RATA FORMULA:  Approval or payment of ICH claims when different hospital 
or ambulance providers are involved in the treatment of a patient will be based on a 
percentage of the charges pro-rated to the amount of total claims submitted within a ninety 
(90) day period from the beginning date of the treatment.  The Pro-Rated percentage of all
claims will be calculated from each provider and will be paid their percentage of the
determined yearly maximum limit per claim.

Section III – IHC Eligibility Provision 

3.1 Individuals Eligible for IHC Assistance.  Individuals are eligible for IHC assistance if 
(1) they qualify as medically indigent; and (2) they have been residents of Sierra
County for at least ninety (90) days.

3.2 Individuals Not Eligible for IHC Assistance.  Individuals are not eligible for 
assistance if (1) they are eligible for medical assistance from the NM Human Services 
Department as specified in Section 27-5-3 NMSA 1978; (2) do not qualify as 
medically indigent; (3) do not meet the residency requirements; or (4) individuals 
under the age of 18, unless the individual is married or emancipated. 



Page 6 of 15 

3.3 Residency Requirements.  All eligible individuals must be residents of Sierra County 
for at least ninety (90) days prior to receiving medical services.  Claimants must 
provide proof of residency such as : (1) A copy of Sierra County Driver’s 
License/Picture I.D; (2) A notarized Proof of Residency form completed by a non-
related landlord or individual verifying that the patient has resided in Sierra County 
for at least ninety (90) days; (3) voter registration; (4) payment receipt of a utility bill, 
rental agreement, etc.  College students attending college outside of the County shall 
be considered primary residents of Sierra County.  

3.4 Medically Indigent Persons Eligibility. In addition to residency requirements, a 
claimant is qualified as medically indigent and eligible to receive IHC assistance if 
the person or the person’s spouse or dependent, is determined under the provisions of 
this Ordinance to be unable to pay for eligible medical treatment or care that has been 
received after the individual has attempted to make payment and has exhausted all 
other financial resources for such payment ot the extent possible, taking in 
consideration the person’s income and family’s size based on the following provisions 
and criteria; 

A. Basic Eligible Annual Income Criteria.  In order to be qualified as
medically indigent and eligible for IHC assistance, a claimant’s annual
household income as determined in Paragraph 3.4C of this Section, shall not
be greater than 150% of the Federal Income Guidelines.

B. Payment by Claimant.  Once claimant is deemed as eligible, the
claimant, claimant’s spouse and/or dependent(s) must agree to exhaust
every financial resource of the family, to the extent possible, to make
payment(s) of their medical bills.  This includes all insurance or other
programs or funding assistance available to the claimant.
Claimants are eligible to receive IHC assistance for insurance
deductibles, Medicare deductibles, co-insurance days or co-insurance
pay.

C. Determination of Annual Income.  The income indicated on claimant’s
most recent Federal or State income tax return will be accepted as the
claimant’s annual income, unless the claimant’s income has changed due
to a loss of a job, a substantial decrease or increase to income.  In these
circumstances, the current monthly income shall be taken into
consideration in order to determine eligibility.  Pay stubs or some other
form may be used to verify this change to income.  The claimant is
required to provide a complete Federal or State income tax return, the
claimant is required to complete a notarized tax waiver form with an
attached copy of the claimant’s social security card.

(1) Claimants that own their business must additionally submit a Profit
and Loss Statement prepared by a CPA in order to be considered for
IHC funding.

(2) IHC Income.  The County utilizes the Federal Poverty Guidelines as a
measure for eligibility, and allows the IHC staff to use the adjusted
gross income based on the number of individuals in a house hold or



Page 7 of 15 

family. An expectant mother’s unborn child will be included in 
determining the family or household eligibility. 

(3) Child support payments will be considered in determining the
annual income of claimant.

(4) Medical Garnishments will be a deduction for establishing
household income.

(5) Medical Spend Down:  Claimants annual income may be reduced by
the amount of regular payments made to medical providers within
the previous twelve (12) months, if the payments are for services that
were not covered by this policy.

D. Assets.  A household that has liquid assets in the amount of $20,000 or
less and an individual which has liquid assets in the amount of $10,000
or less will be eligible for indigent health care claims assistance.

3.5 Medical Providers Eligible for IHC Approval or Reimbursement. 

1. A general or limited hospital licensed by the Department of Health, whether
owned by a political subdivision, not-for-profit or for-profit corporation, or a
licensed out-of-state  hospital, approved by the Department of Health, where
treatment provided is necessary for the proper care of an indigent patient when
that care is not available in an in-state hospital.

2. An in-state home health agency licensed and certified by Medicare and the State
of New Mexico.

3. An in-state hospice which is licensed and certified by Medicare and the State of
New Mexico.

4. An in-state ambulance provider.

5. Behavioral health providers eligible medical care and treatment services as
specified by this Ordinance.

6. Licensed Medical Doctor, Osteopathic Physician, Dentist, Optometrist or
Expanded Practice Nurse who provides emergency services in a hospital to an
Indigent patient.

Only the above-listed medical providers are eligible for IHC reimbursements. 

3.6 Medical Treatment Eligibility and Payment.  Eligible persons may receive IHC 
       assistance for medical care and treatment received from an eligible medical       

provider as listed in Section 3.5.  Whenever insurance or Medicare payments exceed 
the established payment percentage, or limit, no approval of  payment will be made.  
Should the insurance or Medicare payment fall below the determined annual 
percentage, the applicant may be assisted with the remaining balance.  In 
circumstances where there are multiple providers and the medical expenses will reach 



Page 8 of 15 

the maximum limitation amount, the Pro-Rata formula will be used to calculate the 
amount of reimbursement to each medical provider.  IHC claims will be based on the 
order that expenses for treatment are incurred up to the maximum.  Payment will be   

       made in the order claims are approved by the IHC Board. 

A. Claim Eligibility and Limitations for IHC Approvals or Payment. The Indigent
Hospital and Health Care Act Section 27-5-1 (NMSA 1978) limits approvals or
payments to “actual costs” for hospital care normally consisting of general
medical treatment, and shall not exceed the determined established annual
limits per patient and providers as set forth by the IHC Board in Appendix 1.
Application for IHC payment may be submitted after the treatment is complete,
or after the billing or the treatment is received.

(1) Ambulance transportation – These services are allowed based upon the
expense incurred to include the care and transport of a patient to the
“nearest” general or limited hospital.  Claims that reach the maximum
allowed policy limit may be subject to the Pro-Rata payment formula
whenever there are multiple providers.

(2) Home Health Services – These services are allowed based on the actual
need of the patient.  Services include supplies, skilled nursing services,
home health aids, prescribed medication, physical therapy, occupational
and speech therapy.  These services should be provided as deemed
necessary for the patient’s care and reimbursed to the provider at the rates
specified on the provider agreement.  The total sum of IHC payments shall
be considered as a separate expense above any other medical claim limits
and shall be limited to the established annual limit per patient.  Services
must be provided by a contracted home health provider licensed and
certified by Medicare and the State of New Mexico.  The total payments to
a contracted home health service provider shall not exceed the established
annual limit as determined by the IHC Board.

(3) Hospice Care Service – These services are allowed based on the actual
need of the patient.  The total sum of IHC payments for these services shall
be considered as a separate expense form the other medical claim limits.
The total sum of IHC payments for these services shall be considered as a
separate expense from the other medical claim limits.  The total sum of
IHC payments for these services shall be considered as a separate expense
from the other medical claim limits.  The total sum of payment shall not
exceed the established annual limit per patient. The total payment to a
contracted Hospice provider shall not exceed the established annual limit
as determined by the IHC Board.

(4) Mental Health Services – One claim per fiscal year will be permitted or
psychiatric treatment services rendered by a contracted behavioral health
care provider.  One treatment for attempted suicide will also be permitted
within the same fiscal year.  The combination of both of these treatments
will not exceed the determined policy limit for approval or payment as set
fort by the IHC Board.



Page 9 of 15 

(5) Pregnancy-related Claims – One or more obstetrical deliveries or
pregnancy-related illnesses shall not exceed the established fiscal year
claim limit for each eligible individual.  This includes the cost of the
prenatal care clinic, delivery charges, and possibly the payment of the
newborn charge.

(6) Substance Abuse -  IHC approval or payment is available for only one
inpatient substance abuse claim when deemed medically necessary, as well
as unlimited outpatient substance abuse claims.  However, the sum of both
inpatient and outpatient treatment cannot exceed the policy limit.  Also, the
total sum of all IHC payments to any approved behavioral health care
provider shall not exceed the established annual limit per provider.

(7) Primary Care Services - Primary care services are provided to individuals
for the basic or general health care needs of the patient.

(8) Physicians - A licensed medical doctor, certified registered nurse
anesthetist, certified nurse practitioner, osteopathic physician, dentist,
optometrist or  expanded practice nurse when providing emergency
services, as determined by the IHC Administrator, in a hospital to an
indigent patient; or a licensed medical doctor or osteopathic physician,
dentist, optometrist or expanded practice nurse when providing services in
an outpatient setting, as determined by the IHC Administrator, to an
indigent patient with life threatening illness or disability.

(9) Other services.  The IHC Administrator may allow other services which will
benefit all indigent patients as deemed necessary.

B. Claims Not Eligible for Payment.  The following claims are not eligible for
payment: (1) hospital elective surgery or treatment; (2) nursing home care;
(3) medical social worker; (4) nutrition counseling; and (5) primary care co-

pays and prescription co-pays. 

3.7 Detainees.  Individuals arrested by the Sierra County Sheriff’s Office and/or detained 
by Sierra County shall be considered medically indigent for the purpose of this 
Ordinance. 

SECTION IV – APPLICATION FOR IHC ASSISTANCE. 

4.1 IHC Application Provisions.  The provisions of this Section are required in order for 
an application to be accepted and considered by the County for IHC assistance. 

4.2 Applicant Cooperation.  Failure of applicant’s cooperation in providing the County 
authorization to obtain information is grounds for denial of application. 

4.3 Application Submissions. An application may be submitted after treatment is 
complete or after the billing for the treatment is received. 



Page 10 of 15 

4.4 Acceptance of IHC Applications. The County, at its discretion, may refuse to accept 
any application that does not include all required information or documents requested 
by the County. 

4.5 Application Verification.  Formal applications shall include but not be limited to the 
following: 

A. Name, address and other personal identification of the patient/claimant as deemed
appropriate by the County.

B. Name of patient/claimant, agency, medical provider, or other representative
submitting the application.  If other than the patient, the application shall include
specific authorization in writing, signed by the claimant, or the patient’s agent if
the patient is unable to sign, that the representative is authorized to submit the
application on their behalf.

C. Proof of residency to include Sierra County Driver’s License/Picture I.D., voter
registration, and/or other information as deemed necessary by the County to verify
residency requirements.

D. Proof of income to include Federal or State tax returns, pay stubs, and/or other
information as deemed necessary by the County to verify annual income and
availability of assets.  If the claimant does not file a current return, a notarized tax
waiver form must be completed.  The claimant will be required to provide a  copy
of his or her social security card along with the tax waiver form.

E. The claimant must not be eligible for Medicaid or other assistance provided by the
State of New Mexico Human Services Department, unless a written denial from
Medicaid for financial ineligibility is received and submitted with the IHC
Application.

F. Evidence to verify that all other sources of payment such as insurance, Medicare,
Medicaid etc. will make payment or that a pay source is not available due to
patient’s ineligibility or due to the provider’s failure to submit a claim to the
appropriate agency, which resulted in a denial to the payee.

G. Itemized bills which include the treating diagnosis of all charges submitted for
IHC approval or payment that have been billed by an eligible medical provider.
These billings will be based on provisions of Section 4 of this Ordinance.  Claims
with multiple providers may be held open for sixty (60) days in order for all
providers to submit their bills.  Payments will be based on the pro-rata formula.

4.6 Application Deadline.  A formal application with the required documentation, must    
be submitted to the County IHC office no later than ninety (90) days from the first date 
medical treatment or services were received.  Claims received after the ninety (90) day 
deadline will not be considered for payment, unless the County IHC Administrator 
determines that an exception can be made due to extraordinary circumstances. 

A. The applicant will have ninety (90) days in which to file with the medical
provider that rendered services.  The claimant must provide the necessary



Page 11 of 15 

      documentation to this provider unless the medical provider is located  
      outside the County.  In this circumstance, the applicant must return the   
      completed application to the County IHC office. 
      If the additional requested information is not received within the allotted    
      time, the claim will be closed.  Once the claim is complete, the claim will be    
      approved at the next scheduled monthly IHC Board meeting. 

B. All approved applications will be considered complete and current for one
(1) year from the date in which the application is executed.
Any claims received after an application is approved, the provider will be
expected to complete a supplemental claim form.  The notarized supplement
form must be signed by the adult patient to authorize the medical provide to
release necessary information to process the claim.  After the time limit has
expired for the current application, a new application will be requested with all
required documentation attached.

C. When a patient is covered by insurance, Medicare or another pay source, the
ninety (90) day claim limit will begin with the date that the pay source made
the first payment on the claim.  In circumstances in which a denial has been
received by the provider, the ninety (90) day limit will revert to the original
date of the denial.

4.7 Application Confidentiality.  All information regarding the claimant shall be kept 
strictly confidential. 

SECTION V. – PROVISION FOR IHC APPROVAL OR REIMBURSEMENT TO 
MEIDCAL PROVIDERS 

5.1 Reimbursement To Medical Providers.  Approvals or reimbursement of IHC funds by 
the County shall be made to eligible medical providers based on seventy seven 
percent (77%) of the actual billed charges or one hundred percent (100%) of the 
Medicaid rate, whichever is the lessor thereof, for eligible treatment not to exceed the 
established claim limit, except that approvals or reimbursement of IHC funds by the 
County shall be made to eligible medical providers based of the entire of the actual 
billed charges or one hundred percent (100%) of the Medicaid rate, whichever is the 
lessor thereof, for eligible treatment of individuals committed to the custody of the 
Sierra County Detention Center.  Charges shall be submitted on itemized bills with 
the treating diagnosis form the medical provide(s).  The charges for such services 
shall not exceed the normal charges to other patients.  Approvals or reimbursements 
will be made to medical providers after obtaining authorization from the IHC Board. 

5.2 Overcharges.  Any medical provider found to be overcharging or billing greater than 
the normal charges to other patients for itemized services reimbursed by IHC payment 
is in violation of the provisions of this Ordinance.  The IHC Board may, at its 
discretion, reduce the IHC payment of billed charges to a percentage between 20% 
and 65% of billed charges.  The reduced percentage of payment may be assessed for 
any length of period up to twelve (12) months.  The provider shall be given the 
opportunity to provide its justification and documentation to the County prior to such 
action being implemented.  The County may, at its discretion, hire an independent 



Page 12 of 15 

auditor paid for by the medical provider to determine overcharges.  Medical providers 
shall provide to the County or its representative all information requested to verify 
charges. 

5.3 Reimbursement Limited to Available Funds.  Outstanding IHC claims that have been 
approved by the IHC Board will be paid by the County to each eligible medical 
provider with available Indigent Fund revenues that have been received by the 
County.  Payment will be made based on the order of approved claims by the IHC 
Board.  If revenues are all exhausted or encumbered, the outstanding claims will be 
paid based upon: (1) the order of approval by the IHC Board; (2) current complete 
claims; and (3) aging claims which have been completed. 

5.4 Withholding of IHC Payments.  IHC payments shall be withheld pending the 
disposition of medical payments form other possible sources, such as insurance, 
workers’ compensation, or State and Federal funding that may cover the expenses.  
Upon evidence that the other possible sources will not make payment, IHC funds may 
be approved for payment consistent with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

5.5 Screening and Collections By Providers.  The medical provider is required to screen 
all potential IHC Claimants and determine if the claimant will have a remaining 
balance, a reasonable payment schedule will be made. 

5.6 Claims, Preparation, and Verification by Providers.  The medical provider shall assist 
the claimant in correctly and accurately preparing the formal application to be 
submitted to the County, and shall use all resources available to screen and verify the 
information submitted by the claimant for a final decision by the IHC Board. 

5.7 Disclosure by Medical Providers. Medical providers shall provide to the County 
reports, financial statements, random samples of paid bills or other information 
deemed necessary by the IHC Board or its representatives. 

5.8 Limitation for Collection by Provider.  The medical provider is required to write off 
ninety percent (90%) of the remaining balance.  The medical provider shall not pursue 
collection of a service whenever the provider is at fault in not submitting the patient’s 
charges within the ninety (90) day filing limit and the patient has cooperated and 
submitted all documents necessary to process their claim. 

5.9 Agreement between County and Provider.  All medical providers that are eligible for 
approval or reimbursement of IHC funds shall enter into an agreement with the 
County agreeing to abide by all provisions of this Ordinance prior to receiving any 
IHC funds.  The medical provider shall submit copies of their state license and annual 
certification as part of this ongoing agreement.  The IHC office should receive a copy 
of the renewed certification annually. 

SECTION VI – APPEALS 

6.1 County IHC Board or IHC Administrator.  Any person or medical provider who is 
adversely affected by a decision of the IHC Administrator may appeal that decision to 
the IHC Board within (15) days after the date of the action of the County IHC 



Page 13 of 15 

Administrator.  The IHC Board shall hear the appeal and render a decision in writing 
within sixty (60) days after receiving the Notice of Appeal. 

6.2 IHC Board.   Any person or medical provider who is adversely affected by a decision 
of the IHC Board may appeal that decision to the District Court within thirty (30) 
days of the action of the Board. 

SECTION VII – PENALTIES 

7.1  Criminal Penalties.  Any person or medical provider who intentionally violates the 
provision of this ordinance shall be punished by a fine not to exceed Three Hundred 
Dollars ($300.00) or imprisonment in the County Detention Center of not more than 
ninety (90) days, or both, in accordance with Section 4-37-3 NMSA 1978.  In addition, the 
person or medical provider will be required to reimburse or credit the fund. 

SECTION VIII – REPEALER 

8.1  The rules contained herein replace and supersede all previously issued rules, 
resolutions, regulations and ordinances applicable to the subject matter that is covered in 
this Ordinance, including without limitation, Sierra County Ordinance 10-004.  

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 21st day of November, 2023. 

__________________________ 
TRAVIS DAY, CHAIR 

__________________________ ATTEST BY:  
JAMES PAXON, VICE-CHAIR 

______________________________ 
SHELLY TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK 

__________________________ 
HANK HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 



Page 14 of 15 

APPENDIX 1 
INDIGENT HOSPITAL/HEALTH CARE CLAIM LIMITS 

POLICY MEDICAL   TYPE OF CARE 
LIMIT SERVICES 

$15,000* Hospital  General medical treatment, or acute services  
care.  Services may be out-patient or in-patient   
treatment. Includes the cost of cancer   
treatment  

$2,500 Ambulance       Ambulance transportation by ground or air to 
 nearest facility. 

$2,500 Mental and  This care is limited to one treatment each as  
Suicidal Treatment  deemed  necessary for the patient.  The  

combination of both of  these treatments shall  
 not exceed the fiscal year limit. 

$ 3,000 Substance Abuse Treatment   This care is limited to only one in-patient  
treatment; however, patient treatment is    
unlimited as long as the sum of both in-patient 
and out-patient treatment does not exceed the   
established policy limit.  Provider is  limited  
to $30,000 per fiscal year. 

$ 2,500 Home Health Care    Medical care and treatment as deemed  
   necessary for  the patient each fiscal year in  
   accordance with Section 3.5, (2). Evidence to  
   verify is required. Contracted provider is  
   limited to $20,000 per fiscal year. 

$ 2,500 Hospice Care     Medical care and treatment as deemed  
    necessary for the care of the patient.  Each 
    contracted provider will be limited to  
    $20,000 per fiscal year. 

$2,500 Prenatal & Maternity      A lifetime of three pregnancies will be  
Related Service       allowed per client.  The fiscal year limit will 

     include the cost for   prenatal care, obstetric  
     charges, newborn charges** and  

   miscarriages.  Provider limit will not exceed 
     $20,000 in any fiscal year. 

$2,500        ER Physicians                  Reimburse for medical care administered, as  
   determined by the board, on emergency basis 
   only at a Hospital, at Medicaid fee-for-service 
   rates. Contracted providers limited to $20,000 
   per fiscal year.     

*Services that will exceed the annual claim limit will be pro-rated for reimbursement to each medical provider
which rendered the patient’s treatment or care.



Page 15 of 15 

 **Newborn charges which incur complications and will exceed the established mother’s limit will be 
established as a separate claim. 

Note: The approved limits indicated on this appendix are subject to change each fiscal year based on the 
amount of the Indigent Fund Revenues received.   













































!!!!!!!!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

")")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")
")")

")

")

")

")

")
")

")

")

")

4 A
4 B5

39

40

45

46

47

50

54

55

59

62
6670

71

77

7

848

48

75

V
IR

T
U

E
S

T
 (

C
M

R
B

01
5)

K
IN

G
S

T
O

N

C
E

D
A

R
 S

T

(C
M

R
 B

015)

LULA ST (CMR B015)

W
A

LN
U

T
 S

T
 (C

M
R

 B
124)

KINGSTON MAIN

ST (CMR B015)

K
IN

G
S

T
O

N

W
A

T
E

R
 S

T

(C
M

R
 B

015)

.

Legend

") Address Points

Lot Lines

Road Centerlines

! ! Driveways

Requested Road Portion to be Vacated

Land Owner
LANDER THOMAS

LANDER THOMAS & SATOMI

LITASI SHERRY

SWEANOR LINDA L & LOGAN KENNETH L

WANEK CATHERINE

Sierra_County_Parcels
1 in = 120 ft

Partial Road Vacation - (Lula Street - Kingston) Request #23-002
(Litasi, Wanek, Lander, Sweanor and Logan)

(A)

(B)

(C)
(D)



AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093290204

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093349200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093360201

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093370206

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093390201

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093387243

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093362188

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093409234

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093402232

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093423236

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093422249

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093406248

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093405210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093417212

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093321195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093334197

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093298196

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093313199

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093305222

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093316186

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093301183

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093342182

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093325257

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093300255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093377200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENNETT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEWART

AutoCAD SHX Text
WANEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARVELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WANEK TRUST c/o

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAVETT

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LULA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHOJNOWSKI

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF SIERRA

AutoCAD SHX Text
JONES

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIRTUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEOGH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKELTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAUSSAMEN & SILVA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLUB OF KINGSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPIT & WHITTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LULA ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGSTON TOWNSITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALNUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF SIERRA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPLAR LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LULU

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. 599

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULBICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
304909399257

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHOJNOWSKI

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093349237

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093374241

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093384230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093366240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093368227

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093347223

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093327220

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093321219

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093323219

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093322233

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093324234

AutoCAD SHX Text
3049093333235

AutoCAD SHX Text
LULA STREET







QUITCLAIM DEED OF VACATION 
 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) provides the procedure for discontinuance 
of public roads by Boards of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Catherine Wanek, whose address is 50 Kingston Main St., Kingston, NM 88042, 

requested the Sierra County Board of County Commissioners to vacate the public road described 
below; and,  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) a board of commissioners of 

three freeholders of Sierra County viewed the public road described below; and  

 
WHEREAS, the board of commissioners of three freeholders recommended discontinuance 

of the public road described below; and 

 
WHEREAS, during a duly noticed public meeting held on September 13, 2023, the Sierra 

County Board of County Commissioners, ordered vacated, the following described public road in 
Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 
 LULA STREET BETWEEN LOTS 5 THRU 8 AND E1/2 OF LOT 9, BLOCK F AND 

LOTS 7 THRU 10 AND E1/2 OF LOT 11, BLOCK L, KINGSTON TOWNSITE 
 

AND 
 

LULA STREET BETWEEN W1/2 OF LOT 1, ALL OF LOTS 2 THRU 10, BLOCK 2 AND N1/2 
OF LOTS 1 AND 2, ALL OF LOTS 3 THRU 10, BLOCK 3, KINGSTON LULA ADDITION 

 

NOW, THERFORE, the County of Sierra hereby quitclaims, vacates and abandons the above-
described public road in Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, New 
Mexico, have caused this instrument to be signed for and in behalf of said Sierra County, New Mexico 
on this 17th day of October, 2023. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

OF SIERRA COUNTY 

 

__________________________ 

TRAVIS DAY, CHAIR 

 

__________________________ 

JAMES PAXON, VICE-CHAIR 

 

__________________________ 

HANK HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 

 

ATTEST BY:   

 

______________________________________ 

SHELLY TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK  



QUITCLAIM DEED OF VACATION 
 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) provides the procedure for 
discontinuance of public roads by Boards of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Linda L. Sweanor and Kenneth L. Logan, whose address is 66 Kingston Main 

St., Kingston, NM 88042, requested the Sierra County Board of County Commissioners to vacate 
the public road described below; and,  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) a board of commissioners 

of three freeholders of Sierra County viewed the public road described below; and  

 
WHEREAS, the board of commissioners of three freeholders recommended 

discontinuance of the public road described below; and 

 
WHEREAS, during a duly noticed public meeting held on September 13, 2023, the Sierra 

County Board of County Commissioners, ordered vacated, the following described public road in 
Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 
 NORTH HALF OF LULA STREET ADJACENT TO LOTS 14 THRU 17, BLOCK 2, 

KINGSTON LULA ADDITION 
 

NOW, THERFORE, the County of Sierra hereby quitclaims, vacates and abandons the above-
described public road in Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, New 
Mexico, have caused this instrument to be signed for and in behalf of said Sierra County, New 
Mexico on this 17th day of October, 2023. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

OF SIERRA COUNTY 

 

__________________________ 

TRAVIS DAY, CHAIR 

 

__________________________ 

JAMES PAXON, VICE-CHAIR 

 

__________________________ 

HANK HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 

 

ATTEST BY:   

 

______________________________________ 

SHELLY TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK  



QUITCLAIM DEED OF VACATION 
 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) provides the procedure for 
discontinuance of public roads by Boards of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Sherry Litasi, whose address is 48 Kingston Main St., Kingston, NM 88042, 

requested the Sierra County Board of County Commissioners to vacate the public road described 
below; and,  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) a board of commissioners 

of three freeholders of Sierra County viewed the public road described below; and  

 
WHEREAS, the board of commissioners of three freeholders recommended 

discontinuance of the public road described below; and 

 
WHEREAS, during a duly noticed public meeting held on September 13, 2023, the Sierra 

County Board of County Commissioners, ordered vacated, the following described public road in 
Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 
 LULA STREET BETWEEN LOTS 1 THROUGH 4, BLOCK F AND 

LOTS 1, 5 AND 6, BLOCK L, KINGSTON TOWNSITE 
 

NOW, THERFORE, the County of Sierra hereby quitclaims, vacates and abandons the above-
described public road in Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, New 
Mexico, have caused this instrument to be signed for and in behalf of said Sierra County, New 
Mexico on this 17th day of October, 2023. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

OF SIERRA COUNTY 

 

__________________________ 

TRAVIS DAY, CHAIR 

 

__________________________ 

JAMES PAXON, VICE-CHAIR 

 

__________________________ 

HANK HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 

 

 

ATTEST BY:   

 

______________________________________ 

SHELLY TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK  



QUITCLAIM DEED OF VACATION 
 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) provides the procedure for 
discontinuance of public roads by Boards of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Thomas and Satomi Lander, whose address is 62 Kingston Main St., 

Kingston, NM 88042, requested the Sierra County Board of County Commissioners to vacate the 
public road described below; and,  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) a board of commissioners 

of three freeholders of Sierra County viewed the public road described below; and  

 
WHEREAS, the board of commissioners of three freeholders recommended 

discontinuance of the public road described below; and 

 
WHEREAS, during a duly noticed public meeting held on September 13, 2023, the Sierra 

County Board of County Commissioners, ordered vacated, the following described public road in 
Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 
 LULA STREET BETWEEN LOTS 11 THRU 13, BLOCK 2 AND 
LOTS 11 THRU 13, BLOCK 3, KINGSTON LULA ADDITION 

 

AND 
 

SOUTH HALF OF LULA STREET ADJACENT TO LOTS 14 THRU 17, BLOCK 3, 
KINGSTON LULA ADDITION 

 

NOW, THERFORE, the County of Sierra hereby quitclaims, vacates and abandons the above-
described public road in Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, New 
Mexico, have caused this instrument to be signed for and in behalf of said Sierra County, New 
Mexico on this 17th day of October, 2023. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

OF SIERRA COUNTY 

 

__________________________ 

TRAVIS DAY, CHAIR 

 

__________________________ 

JAMES PAXON, VICE-CHAIR 

 

__________________________ 

HANK HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 

 

ATTEST BY:   

 

______________________________________ 

SHELLY TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK  



REIMBURSING AGENCY: Department of Finance and Administration
Business Unit: 341

RECIPIE,NT:

Sierra County

APPROPRIATION ER: TOTAL ALLOCATION REVERSION DATE:

22-ZGLOL6-24-2

AMOUNT:

$131,250.00 June 30,2024

ALLOCATION PURPOSE

One hundred thirty-one thousand two hundred fifty dotlars and zero cents over three years to be utilized for

recruitment and retention stipends. The second allocations will be disbursed within 5 business days of

execution of this agreement.

ALLOCATION DISBURSEMENT

The remaining allocation amount, after receiving the first-year allocation in fiscal year 2023, will be disbursed as

follows. The second-year allocated funds will be disbursed up to $37,500 in fiscal year 2024, and the third-year

allocated funds will be disbursed up to $18,750 in fiscal year 2025. The Allocation Recipient will submit to the

Department of Finance & Administration this signed document and evidence of approval of the local governing

body. Disbursements of funds will be made within 5 business days of receipt of the signed agreement.

Funds for the second disbursement must be expended by June 30,2024; and the third disbursement will be

made in August 2024 to be expended by June 30,2025. Any amount not expended in each of the remaining

two years will be returned to the State of New Mexico, Department of Finance and Administration in the year

that it is scheduled for reversion. All expenditures must occur prior to the reversion date'

The Allocation Recipient agrees to submit quarterly reports using Exhibit A, Law Enforcement Report, providing

updates on expenditures for recruitment and retentions stipends.

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certiff that Sierra CountY

l. Will only use the allocated funds to carry out and/or perform activities described in allocation language.

"Allocation Reporting" of allocated funds.

t0lro/s
Local Law Enforcement Agency Date

Authorized Local Governing Body Authority Date

APPROVAL
In accordance with the authority conferred on the Department of Finance & Administration by the statute

appropriating these funds, I hereby approve this certification for the second-year disbursement for

appropriation numb er 22-ZGl0l6-24-2 in the amount of $37,500.00.

2. Will follow the procedure d.ocribed in

3

Local Government Director Date



Revised 0811612023

REIMBURSING AGENCY : Departm of Finance and stration

Business Unit: 341

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
Law Enforcement Recruitment and Retention

Report Form
Exhibit A

# Of Officers Recruited this
Quarter:

Total Amount of Recruitment
Stipend:

# Of Officers Retained this
Quarter:

Total Amount of Retention
Stipends:

Narrative:
(Provide description of next steps to fill any remaining vacant positions. Fvomnlec' event or outreach social media.)uslng

Completed b1'

Recruitment and retention stipends may be distributed to:

A. a person who is not certified as a law enforcemcnt oflicer pursuant to the Law Enforcement Training Act upon

employment with a law enforcement agency; provided that the recipie nt successfully obtains such certification;

B. a person who is certified as a law enforcement officer pursuent to the Law Enforcement Training Act upon

employment with a law enforcement egency; provided that the recipient remains employed with that agency for
three months; and

C. a person who is certified as a law enforcement officer pursuent to the Law Enforcement Training Act currently
employed by a law enforcement egency; provided that the law enforcement oflicer remains employed with that law
enforcement officer's current egency for one additional year.

Allocation Recipient:
Appropriation Number:
Fiscal Year 2024

Quarter (please select) September E December E March E June E



REIMBURSING AGENCY: Department of Finance and Administration

Business Unit: 341

RE,CIPIENT:

Sierra County

APPROPzuATION NUMBER: TOTAL ALLOCATION
AMOUNT:

$262,500.00

REVERSION DATE:

23-ZHs048-84
ALLOCATION PURPOSE

June 30,2024

Two Hundred and Sixty Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents over three years to hire law
enforcemenUsupport positions. The first allocations will be disbursed at l00oh within 5 business days of
acceptance of this agreement to include approval of the local governing body.

ALLOCATION DISBURSEME,NT

The allocated funds will be disbursed 100% up to $ 150,000 the first year, 50oh up to $75,000 the second year, and

25Youp to $37,500 the third year. The Allocation Recipient will submit to the Department of Finance &
Administration this signed document and evidence of approval of the local governing body. Disbursements of funds

will be made within 5 business days of receipt of the signed agreement and evidence of approval of the local
governing body.

Funds for the first disbursement must be expended from July 1, 2023, through June 30,2024; the second 507o

disbursement will be made in August 2024 to be expended by June 30,2025; and the last disbursement of
25oh will be made in August 2025 to be expended by June 30,2026. Any amount not expended in each of the
three years will be returned to the State of New Mexico, Department of Finance and Administration in the
year that it is scheduled for reversion. All expenditures must occur prior to the reversion date.

The Allocation Recipient agrees to submit quarterly reports using Exhibit A, Law Enforcement Recruitment Report,
providing updates on the hiring of law enforcement/support positions.

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certiff that the Sierra County

l. Will only use the allocated funds to carry out and/or perform activities described in allocation language

2. Will follour the procedure described in "Allocation Reporting" of allocated funds.furu /o/rt/z=
Local Law Enforcement Agency Date

Authorized Local Governing Body Authority

APPROVAL
In accordance with the authority conferred on the Department of Finance & Administration by the statute

appropriating these funds, I hereby approve this certification for appropriation number 23-2H5048-84 in
the amount of $262,500.00.

Date

Wesley Billingsley
Director, Local Government Division

Date



REIMBURSING AGENCY: Department of Finance and Administration

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
Law Enforcement Recruitment Fund

Quarterly RePort Form
Exhibit A

Business Unit: 341

Add extra lines as

Allocation Recipient:
Appropriation Number:

Narrative:
(Provide description of next steps to fill any remaining vacant positions. Examples: hiring event or outreach using social media.)

Provide names of individuals hired and
their hire date:

Title of Position Vacant Position
Salary:

New Position
Salary:

Total Amount of Appropriation Funds
Expended this Quarter:

Total: $ Total: $



 

REIMBURSING AGENCY: Department of Finance and Administration
Business Unit: 341 

APPROPRIATION RECIPIENT: SIERRA COUNTY
APPROPRIATION NUMBER: 23-ZH9304
APPROPRIATION AMOUNT: $375,000.00
REVERSION DATE: June 30, 2024 

APPROPRIATION LANGUAGE
THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND ($375,000.00) to purchase and equip vehicles and other equipment for the
Sierra county sheriff's office. Funds unexpended by June 30, 2024, will be reverted to the State of New Mexico's general fund. 

APPROPRIATION REIMBURSEMENT
The appropriation funds will be disbursed through a reimbursement process. The Appropriation Recipient will submit to the
Reimbursing Agency the Exhibit A: Request for Payment form along with supporting document(s) that evidence the expenses to be
reimbursed. The Reimbursing Agency will review these documents to ensure all expenses to be reimbursed reflect the intent and
purpose of the appropriation language. All expenditures for which the Appropriation Recipient requests reimbursement must occur
prior to the reversion date. The latest date the Appropriation Recipient may submit a Request for Payment is July 15, 2024. With the
submission of the final Exhibit A: Request for Payment, the Appropriation Recipient must include a completed Exhibit B: Final
Report form in order to receive the final reimbursement. 

CERTIFICATION
I hereby certify that SIERRA COUNTY

1. Will only use the appropriation funds to carry out and/or perform activities described in appropriation language.
2. Will comply with State Procurement Code and execution of binding written obligations or purchase orders with third party

contractors or vendors for the provision of services, including professional services, or the purchase of tangible personal
property and real property for the project.

3. Ensures that the appropriation funds only benefit entities in accordance with applicable law, including, but not limited to
Article IX, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of New Mexico, "Anti-Donation Clause."

4. Will follow the procedure described in “Appropriation Reimbursement” for reimbursement of appropriated funds.

______________________________________________
Appropriation Recipient Representative

___________________________
Date

______________________________________________
Appropriation Recipient CFO

___________________________
Date

APPROVAL
In in accordance with the authority conferred on the Department of Finance & Administration by the statute appropriating these funds,
I hereby approve this certification for appropriation number 23-ZH9304 in the amount of $375,000.00. 

______________________________________________
Wesley Billingsley
Director, Local Government Division

___________________________
Date

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

                               1 / 1

http://www.tcpdf.org


I. Grantee Information II. Payment Computation
A. Payment Request No.

A. Grantee: B. Grant Amount:

B. Address: C. AIPP Amount (If Applicable) :

D. Funds Requested to Date:

E. Amount Requested this Payment:

F. Reversion Amount (If Applicable ):

G. Grant Balance:C. Contact Name/Phone #:

D. Grant No: H. GF

E. Project Title: I. Final Request for Payment (if Applicable )

F.

(The State of NM Fiscal Year is July 1, 20XX through June 30, 20XX of the following year)

IV.

Grantee Fiscal Officer     Grantee Representative  
or Fiscal Agent (if applicable )

Printed Name Printed Name

Date: Date:

Vendor Code: Fund No.: Loc No.:

I certify that the State Agency financial and vendor file information agree with the above submitted information.

Division Fiscal Officer Date Division Project Manager Date

(State Agency Use Only)

III. Fiscal Year :

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SB192 Junior Appropriation
Request for Payment Form 

Exhibit A

       (Make sure information is complete & accurate)

(Complete Mailing, including Suite, if applicable)

Grant Expiration Date:

Compliance Certification: Under penalty of law, I hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, the above information is correct;
expenditures are properly documented, and are valid expenditures or actual receipts; and that the grant activity is in full compliance with Article IX, Sec. 14 of the
New Mexico Constitution known as the "anti donation" clause.

City, State, Zip

September 2014

Compliance Certification: Under penalty of law, I hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, the above information is correct; 
expenditures are properly documented, and are valid expenditures or actual receipts; and that the grant activity is in full compliance with Article IX, Sec. 14 of the 
New Mexico Constitution known as the "anti donation" clause.



REIMBURSING AGENCY: Department of Finance and Administration 

Business Unit: 341 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
SB192 Junior Appropriation 

Final Report Form 
Exhibit B 

Appropriation Recipient: 

Appropriation Number: 

Use of Appropriation Funds Amount  
Personnel Expenses 
Other Operating Expenses 
Capital Expenses 
Other ________________________________ 

Total Amount of Appropriation Funds Expended 

Narrative 
Describe the outcomes, results, benefit, and or uses of the appropriation funds 







































































































State of New Mexico 

Shelly Trujillo 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 
575-894-2589

TomPestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 Amber Vaughn 

County Manager 
1712 N. Date Street Suite D 

Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 

County of Sierra 

Travis Day 
Commission Chair 

575-894-62/5

James E. Pax�m 
Commission Vice- Chair 

575-894-62/ 5

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
5 75-894-6215 

Joshua Baker 
Sheriff 

575-894-9/50

STATE PRICEAGREEMENT BETWEEN WAC UPFITTERS 
AND THE COUNTY OF SIERRA 

October 11, 2023 

Dear Commissioners: 

RE: WA C UPFITTERS-STATE PRICE AGREEMENT-SHERIFF 

The County received a Jr Appropriation Fund, which will allow the Sheriffs Department, funding 
to equip the (5) new units. Succeeding approval for the units on the agenda. When, the final 
documents are returned and accepted through the State, we are able to move forward with the 
Notice of Obligation and Purchase Order. 

Based on discussion with the County Manager and our Facility Department, a determination was 
issued, to move forward with the SPA purchase. We were able to utilize the State Price 
Agreement# 20-00000-21-00030-Wac Upfitters. Please see attached documentation. 

I am requesting, our County Commission, to review and approve the equipment install for the (5) 
new, 2023 Ford Explorer Interceptors. Thank you. 

Please, see attached: 

Fund #23-ZH9304 

(Award Total Balance: $375,000.00) 

Remaining Fund Balance Forward: $127,124.06 
LEPF Offset Cost: $3,625.94 
WAC Total Cost: $130,750.94 

Respectively, 

Jocelyn Holguin 
Chief Procurement Officer 





















 

SIERRA COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION № 110-194 

SUPPORTING THE NEW MEXICO TRAPPERS ASSOCIATION’S LITIGATION AGAINST THE 

STATE’S PUBLIC LANDS TRAPPING BAN  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, met in a commission 
meeting on October 17, 2023, at 10:00 A.M. in the Sierra County Administration Office, 1712 N. 
Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and,  

 
WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995) provides that Counties have the power 

to, “provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, 
order, comfort and convenience of any county or its inhabitants”; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, NMSA, 1978, Section 4-38-18 (1976) provides that a Board of County 
Commissioner has the duty and authority “[t]o represent the county and have the care of the county 
property and the management of the interest of the county in all cases where no other provision is 
made by law;” and, 

 
WHEREAS, in 2021, Senate Bill 32, termed the Wildlife Conservation & Public Safety 

Act (hereinafter the “Act”) which generally prohibits trapping, snaring, and using wildlife poison 
for purposes of capturing, injuring, or killing an animal on public land, subject to several important 
exceptions was passed and signed into law; and,  

 
WHEREAS, under the Act, Section 17-11-3 provides “[i]t is a violation of the Wildlife 

Conservation and Public Safety Act to use a trap, snare, or wildlife poison for purposes of 
capturing, injuring, or killing an animal on public land except as provided in Section 17-11-4…”;” 
and,  

WHEREAS, Section 17-11-4 specifies the exceptions to the Act. Under N.M.S.A. § 17-
11- 4(H), the Act does not apply to “enrolled members of a federally recognized Indian nation, 
tribe or pueblo when trapping is conducted solely for religious or ceremonial purposes pursuant to 
the rules issued by the department of game and fish in collaboration with the secretary of Indian 
affairs and consistent with federal procedures for recognition and protection of bona fide Indian 
nation, tribe or pueblo religious ceremonies;”  and, 

 



WHEREAS, the Act aids and creates unlawful preferences for Native American religions, 
Native American modes of worship, and religious activities over secular activities in violation of 
N.M. Const. Art. II, § 11 and U.S. Const. Amend. I. 10; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Act deprives New Mexico residents and people within the state of rights, 

privileges and/or immunities secured pursuant to the bill of rights of the constitution of New 
Mexico, in violation of the New Mexico Civil Rights Act, NMSA. Section 41-4A-1 et seq.; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Act denies equal protection of the law as it permits enrolled members of 

federally recognized Indian nations, tribes, or pueblos to trap on public land while denying 
similarly situated individuals that same right thereby violating equal protection clause of the 
Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article II, Section 18 of the New 
Mexico Constitution; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Establishment Clause of the First Amendment of the United States 
Constitution “means at least this: [n]either a state nor the Federal Government…can pass laws 
which aid one religion, aid all religions, or prefer one religion over another.” Everson, 330 U.S. at 
15.; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Act violates the State and Federal establishment clauses as it both aids 
and prefers Native American religions over other religions; aids and prefers Native American 
modes of worship over other modes of worship; and aids and prefers religious activities over non-
religious activities; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the NM Trappers Association, in conjunction with the National Fur trappers 

Association and Fur Takers of America have filed a federal lawsuit against the State of New 
Mexico to overturn the Act and protect the civil rights of New Mexicans. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
the County of Sierra that it hereby supports the litigation to overturn the Wildlife Conservation 
and Public Safety Act. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board calls on the Court to issue an or order 

declaring that the Wildlife Conservation and Public Safety Act violates the Equal protection and 
Establishment Clauses of the New Mexico and United States Constitutions, and well as the New 
Mexico Civil Rights Act.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 17th day of October, 2023. 
 

 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 

 

______________________________________               
Travis Day, Chairman  

 

______________________________________              
James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

 

______________________________________                
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

Attest: 

 

_________________________________                    
Shelly K. Trujillo                      
Sierra County Clerk 

 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Resolution No.  110-195 

Resolution Supporting the New Mexico Counties 
2024 Legislative Priorities 

 
WHEREAS, in August 2023, the New Mexico Counties Board of Directors approved three legislative 
priorities for consideration by the New Mexico Legislature at its 2024 session; and 
 
WHEREAS, NMC has requested that the Board of County Commissioners in each of the state’s 33 
counties discuss and approve support for NMC’s legislative priorities as an important step in assuring 
maximum understanding of NMC’s legislative priorities at the county level; and  
 
WHEREAS, county support enables NMC to demonstrate strong local and statewide support to the state 
legislature for the following issues: 
 
1. HB 2 Appropriations 
 
      Detention Reimbursement Fund 

Fully fund County Detention Facilities Reimbursement Act Fund to reimburse counties for the actual 
cost of housing state inmates.  
• Currently at $5 million  
• According to the New Mexico Sentencing Commission, the five-year average cost to house New 

Mexico Corrections Department inmates is $7.5 million. 
 
       Detention Recruitment and Retention  

Appropriate $10 million to the newly formed Corrections Workforce Capacity Building Fund 
administered by DFA. 
• Sufficient numbers of detention staff are essential to a safe and well-operated detention facility   

which is directly correlated to community safety.   
• A public safety recruitment and retention fund would provide local governments with much 

needed resources to provide detention services to their communities. 
 

Prisoner Transport and Extradition  
Create a line item in the DFA budget with $750,000 to reimburse counties that provide      
transportation for state prisoners. 
• Statute 4-44-18C NMSA requires the state to make such payment. 
• Counties should not be responsible to pay for state prisoner extradition.  

 
     RISE Funding 

Make permanent and increase county participation in the RISE (Reach, Intervene, Support and 
Engage) Program. 

 
Emergency Medical Services 
Create a line item in the Department of Health Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Bureau budget     
with $10 million to assist local government EMS services. 
• Emergency medical services in New Mexico have been significantly underfunded for years.  
• Current state appropriations, taxes collected through local GRT increments, and other sources 

of revenue do not provide sufficient support to local governments to meet community needs, 
especially in rural areas of the state.  

• EMS services are vital to the health and welfare of New Mexico citizens. 
 



Page 2 of 3 

Courthouse Funding 
Create a recurring appropriation of $25 million for construction and renovation of state district 
courthouses. 
• In 2023, the legislature appropriated $23 million to the Administrative Office of the Courts to

assist with critical needs.
• $15 million was designated to resolve litigation between the 8th Judicial District Court and Otero

County and the remaining balance is being distributed based on needs statewide.
• Counties maintain that district courthouses are a state responsibility and that the rising costs of

construction, security, and IT necessitate a shared revenue stream.

State Health Benefits Plan 
Create a State Health Benefit Fund solvency plan. 
• The current State Health Care Benefit Plan is facing an estimated $149 million deficit.
• The State of New Mexico has not increased premiums in the past three years.
• The General Services Division invoiced local government public bodies (LPB) for approximately

$18 million for previous and projected shortfalls.
• NMC has filed a lawsuit on behalf of 24 counties questioning the legality of these “special

assessments.”
• NMC seeks a solution to ensure fund solvency and guarantee proper notice and planning to

enable LPBs to adequately budget for increased cost moving forward.

2. Elected Official Salary Increase

Increase the salary cap for newly elected county officials by 15% with a provision for future
adjustments to track the Consumer Price Index (CPI).
• Last amended in 2018 (HB69) for increases beginning in 2019.
• Historically adjusted approximately every 4 years.
• Must be in place when newly elected officials take office in 2024.
• CPI provision would eliminate the need for repeated legislative action.

3. Firefighter Recruitment & Retention

Appropriate a $50 million reoccurring fund to the NM Department of Homeland Security to be
administered by the State Fire Marshal’s Office for fire departments to staff, recruit, and retain
career and volunteer firefighters.
• Call volume has increased by as much as 50% in the last year.
• Response systems are overburdened.
• Average age of New Mexican volunteer is 65.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the  Sierra Board of County Commissioners does hereby 
support NMC’s legislative priorities as set forth above and urges that legislation incorporating these 
priorities be enacted by the state legislature during its 2024 session. 



Page 3 of 3 

ADOPTED this 17th day of October, 2023. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 

_______________________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman           For / Against 

_______________________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-chair                          For / Against 

_______________________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner         For / Against 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 



SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 110-196 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE AMENDED 2023 TAX RATES 

WHEREAS, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners of Sierra County, New 
Mexico, meeting on October 17, 2023, deem it necessary to approve the 
Amended 2023 Tax Rates as set forth in the certification issued by the 
Department of Finance and Administration; and 

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2023, this Board previously approved the 2023 
Tax Rates as set forth in the certification issued by the Department of Finance and 
Administration, which tax rates have since been updated by the Department of 
Finance and Administration; and, 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 7-38-34 requires that the Board of County 
Commissioners issue a written order, imposing those rates set forth and deliver a 
copy of this order immediately to the County Assessor; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County 
Commissioners, Sierra County, New Mexico hereby approve and implement the 
aforementioned Amended 2023 Certificate of Tax Rates, attached hereto. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 17th day of October, 2023. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 

______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman  

______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 



Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2023 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2023-09-18 14:16:23

Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills
Sierra County
Tax Year 2023

OVERALL COUNTY NET TAXABLE VALUE: $352,005,616

Property Classification Residential Non-Residential Residential Non-Residential Residential Non-Residential

Tax District 6 EB R 6 EB NR 6 IN R 6 IN NR 6 OUT R 6 OUT NR

Municipality Elephant Butte (City) Elephant Butte (City) Truth or Consequences
(City)

Truth or Consequences
(City)

Public School District Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences

College District

Taxable Value 49,733,665 17,589,378 73,714,865 38,830,727 87,111,803 78,763,993

Mill Levies for State, County, Municipality, and School District

State Debt Service 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360

Total State 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360

County Debt Service - - - - - -

County Operational 10.674 11.850 10.674 11.850 10.674 11.850

Total County 10.674 11.850 10.674 11.850 10.674 11.850

Municipal Debt Service - - - - - -

Municipal Operational 4.207 4.225 1.537 2.225 - -

Total Municipal 4.207 4.225 1.537 2.225 0.000 0.000

School Building (House Bill 33 Levy) - - - - - -

School Capital Improvement (Senate Bill 9 Levy) 1.999 2.000 1.999 2.000 1.999 2.000

School District Debt Service 5.651 5.651 5.651 5.651 5.651 5.651

School District Ed. Tech. Debt Service - - - - - -

School District Operational 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500

Total School District 8.150 8.151 8.150 8.151 8.150 8.151

Total State, County, Municipal and School
District

24.391 25.586 21.721 23.586 20.184 21.361

1 / 5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2023 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2023-09-18 14:16:23

Tax District 6 EB R 6 EB NR 6 IN R 6 IN NR 6 OUT R 6 OUT NR

Mill Levies for College and Hospital

Total Higher Education 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Sierra County Hospital

          Hospital Debt Service - - - - - -

          Hospital Operational 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000

Total Hospital 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000

Total College and Hospital 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000

Grand Total State, County, Municipal, Public
School, College, Hospital

26.391 27.586 23.721 25.586 22.184 23.361

Mill Levies for Other Taxing Entities

Underwood Watershed

          Special District Debt Service - - - - - -

          Special District Operational - - - - 5.000 5.000

Sierra Flood Control

          Special District Operational 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500

Sierra SWCD

          Special District Operational (Not Yield
Controlled)

1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Caballo SWCD

          Special District Operational (Not Yield
Controlled)

- - - - 1.000 1.000

Total Other 2.500 2.500 2.500 2.500 8.500 8.500

Grand Total 28.891 30.086 26.221 28.086 30.684 31.861

2 / 5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2023 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2023-09-18 14:16:23

Property Classification Residential Non-Residential

Tax District 6W IN R 6W IN NR

Municipality Williamsburg (Village) Williamsburg (Village)

Public School District Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences

College District

Taxable Value 4,872,601 1,388,584

Mill Levies for State, County, Municipality, and School District

State Debt Service 1.360 1.360

Total State 1.360 1.360

County Debt Service - -

County Operational 10.674 11.850

Total County 10.674 11.850

Municipal Debt Service - -

Municipal Operational 1.687 2.115

Total Municipal 1.687 2.115

School Building (House Bill 33 Levy) - -

School Capital Improvement (Senate Bill 9 Levy) 1.999 2.000

School District Debt Service 5.651 5.651

School District Ed. Tech. Debt Service - -

School District Operational 0.500 0.500

Total School District 8.150 8.151

Total State, County, Municipal and School
District

21.871 23.476

3 / 5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2023 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2023-09-18 14:16:23

Tax District 6W IN R 6W IN NR

Mill Levies for College and Hospital

Total Higher Education 0.000 0.000

Sierra County Hospital

          Hospital Debt Service - -

          Hospital Operational 2.000 2.000

Total Hospital 2.000 2.000

Total College and Hospital 2.000 2.000

Grand Total State, County, Municipal, Public
School, College, Hospital

23.871 25.476

Mill Levies for Other Taxing Entities

Underwood Watershed

          Special District Debt Service - -

          Special District Operational - -

Sierra Flood Control

          Special District Operational 1.500 1.500

Sierra SWCD

          Special District Operational (Not Yield
Controlled)

1.000 1.000

Caballo SWCD

          Special District Operational (Not Yield
Controlled)

- -

Total Other 2.500 2.500

Grand Total 26.371 27.976

4 / 5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2023 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2023-09-18 14:16:23

Livestock Mill Levies

Category Rate Applicable Tax Districts

Cattle Indemnity 10.000 6W IN,6 IN,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT

Sheep/Goats/Swine/Alpaca 9.147 6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 IN,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 IN,6 IN,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT

Dairy Cattle 5.000 6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT

Bison/Camelids/Ratite 7.614 6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT

Horses/Asses/Mules 9.770 6 OUT,6 IN,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 IN,6 IN

Other Assessments

Category Taxing Entity Description

Footnotes

Tax District Classification Assessment Footnote

Amendments

Date Description

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

5 / 5

http://www.tcpdf.org


SIERRA COUNTY 

REPEALING SIERRA COUNTY 
SPINLAUNCH LEDA ORDINANCE 

NO 21-001 

PASSED: __________, 2023 

EFFECTIVE: ___________, 2023



SIERRA COUNTY 
ORDINANCE 23-003 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SIERRA COUNTY SPINLAUNCH LEDA, 
ORDINANCE NO. 21-001 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-18-1 (1972) provides that municipalities, and also 
counties pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995), have the power to “protect 
generally the property of its municipality and its inhabitants” and to “preserve peace and 
order”; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 4-37-1 et seq. NMSA 1978 provides that counties may adopt 
ordinances, not inconsistent with statutory or constitutional limitations placed on counties, 
to discharge those powers necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the 
health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of 
the county and its inhabitants; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 4-57-1 to -3 (1967), the Board of County 
Commissioners previously authorized the County to act as fiscal agent for the Local 
Economic Development Act (LEDA) project with Spinlaunch; and, 

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2021, SpinLaunch, was awarded up to $4,000,000 in LEDA 
funds to construct and develop a suborbital launch system facility at Spaceport America in 
Sierra County, New Mexico.   

WHEREAS, part of this project included the creation of fifty-nine (59) new, full-time 
permanent jobs by December 31, 2030; and 

WHEREAS, SpinLaunch signed and agreed to the terms of the Project Participation 
Agreement (PPA) with Sierra County to perform and, upon completion of performance 
milestones, receive State of New Mexico LEDA  funding; and, 

WHEREAS, SpinLaunch’s LEDA project required submission of job reports in order to track 
the company’s hiring throughout the term of the project; and, 

WHEREAS, as of today, SpinLaunch has not submitted job reports for Q3-2022, Q4-2022, 
Q1-2023 or Q2-2023 PPA, and is currently non-compliant with the terms of the PPA.   

WHEREAS, no funds from this award have been distributed to SpinLaunch. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
the County of Sierra that (1) the County Administration is to terminate the Project 
Participation Agreement (PPA) attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made part of this 
Ordinance (2) that the County reimburse the NMEDD its original funding toward the 
SpinLaunch project in the amount of $4,000,000.00, within 30 days of receipt of funds; 

Page 2 of 3 



Page 3 of 3 

and (3) that the County staff is authorized to do all deeds as necessary in the 
accomplishment thereof. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND ORDAINED on this 17th day of October, 

2023. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 

______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman  

______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 



Page 1 of 3 

Sierra County 
Amendment to the Sierra County Personnel Policy 

Ordinance, 16-009

Ordinance No: 23-004 

Passed: ____________ 

Effective Date: 30 days 



SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ORDINANCE № 23-004 

AMENDING THE SIERRA COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY ORDINANCE, ORDINANCE NO.
16-009

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met upon notice of a 
regular meeting, duly published, at the Sierra County Administrative Offices, 1712 N Date St, 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901, on October 17, 2023; and,  

WHEREAS, on Oct 17th, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County adopted 
Ordinance 23-004, the Sierra County Personnel Policy Ordinance, to establish consistent, basic 
policies and practices, and professionalism expectations concerning relations between the 
County and its Employees; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 9.3 of the Personnel Policy Ordinance provides, in pertinent part, 
that “FLSA non-exempt, law enforcement or detention employee shall be paid overtime 
according to FLSA regulations in excess of eighty-six (86) hours per pay period permitted by 29 
U.S.C. Section 207(k)[;]” and, 

WHEREAS, in recognition of the invaluable contributions of our law enforcement and 
detention personnel, the Board of County Commissioners seeks to fully and fairly compensate its 
law enforcement and detention personnel, and to pay overtime in excess of eighty (80) hours per 
paid period. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are incorporated by reference as 
a material part of the Ordinance Amendment as if the same were set out completely in the 
Ordinance Amendment. 

2. Amendment.  Ordinance 16-009 shall be amended as set forth in this instrument, 
and, except as expressly amended by this instrument, shall remain in full force and effect as 
written. 

3. Amendment to Section 9.3 of Ordinance 16-009 Section 9.3 of this Ordinance is 
deleted in its entirety and the following Section 9.3 is substituted in its place: 

9.3 Overtime Pay: Only FLSA non-exempt employees shall be compensated for all 
time actually worked, whether or not the time is authorized. Failure to obtain authorization for 

Page 2 of 3 



Page 3 of 3 

overtime shall result in disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. The rate shall be one 
and one-half (1½) times regular pay for each hour of overtime. Only actual time worked will be 
used to calculate overtime; holiday, annual, sick and other leave hours shall not be considered 
actual working hours.  

A. Regular, Law Enforcement and Detention employees: such payment shall be made
only in cases when an FLSA non-exempt employee works over forty (40) “actual
hours” in a normal workweek.

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND ORDAINED on this 17th day of October, 2023. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 

______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman  

______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 


	Agenda
	Reg 09132023 MINUTES
	Spec 09152023 MINUTES
	RES 110-191 AP
	RES 110-192 BUDGET
	RES 110-193 INDIGENT
	INDIGENT B2023-07
	Claim of Exemption #23-003
	September Reconciliation
	Direct to Publish 23-005
	Direct to Publish 23-006
	Road Vacation VR23-002
	Approval for Year Two of SD Recruitment/Retention
	Approval for SD Recruiting/Hiring Fund $262.5K Over Three Years
	Junior Funds 23-ZH9304
	ABC Concrete Agreement
	Don Chalmers-Facilities Agreement
	Wilson & Co- Fairgrounds Agreement
	CES-WTI/TREMCO - Fairgrounds Agreement
	Don Chalmers-Sheriff Agreement
	WAC Upfitters - Sheriff Agreement
	Res 110-194 Trappers
	Res 110-195 Supporting NMC 2024 Priorites
	RESOLUTION NO. 110-196
	Ord 23-003 Repeal SpinLaunch
	Ord 23-004 Amendment to Personnel Policy

	Make sure information is complete  accurate: 
	1: 
	GrantAmount: 0
	undefined: 
	AIPP: 0
	FundsRequestedToDate: 0
	Complete Mailing including Suite if applicable: 
	AmountRequestedthisPayment: 0
	1_2: 
	2_2: 
	3: 
	Reversion: 0
	Balance: 0
	Grant Expiration Date: 
	Printed Name: 
	Printed Name_2: 
	Vendor Code: 
	Fund No: 
	Loc No: 
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	FY: [2024 (July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024)]
	Date1_af_date: 
	Date2_af_date: 
	Date3_af_date: 
	Date4_af_date: 
	Check Box9: Off
	Appropriation Recipient: 
	Appropriation Number: 
	Capital Expenses: 0
	Other: 
	Other_2: 0
	Narrative Describe the outcomes results benefit and or uses of the appropriation fundsRow1: 
	Text1: 0
	Text2: 0
	Text3: 0


